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(Hearing reconvened at 9:05 a.m.)

COMMISSIONER GUNTEF: All right.

625

MR. STONE: Mr. Chairman, our next witness 1s

Don Gilbert, who has t ken the stand. I don’t believe

he’s been sworn.
DONALD P. GILBERT
appeared as a witness on behalf >f Gulf Power
Corporation and, after being first duly sworn,
testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. STONE:
Q Would you please state your name and

occupation for the record.

A Donald P Gilbert. 1I’m Manager cI Corporate

Planning. Business addiess is 500 North Bayfront
Parkway.

Q Mr. Gilbert, are you the same Dcrnald P.
Gilbert that prefiled direct testimony in Docket
891345, dated December 15, 19897

A I am.

Q Have you any cuanges or corrections to your

prefiled cirect testimony?

A I have some changes. Page 16, --

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Hold on just a second,

Mr. Gilbert, I apologize. Page 167

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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A "age 16, Line 5, change the word "twelve" to
"eight."

Schedulz 7 in my exhibits, delete the
reference to MFR F-11. I'm not responsible for that in
this hearing.

Q With those changes, if I were to ask you the
guestions contained in your prefiled testimony, would
your responses be the same?

A Yus, they would.

MR. STONE: Mr. Chairman, I ask that Mr.
Gilbert’s prefiled testimony be inserted into the
reccrd as though read.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: It will be inserted
into the record as though read.

(Exhibit Nos. 37 through 43 stipulated 1nto

evidence.)

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Direct Testimony of
Jonald P, Silber:
In Support .f Rate Rel.af
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ate of Filing December .5, .
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Please state your name and business address.

Donald P. Gilbert, 500 Bayfront Parkway, Pensac

Flor:da 325C1.

[P B

Please describe your educational and professiounal

background.

. &

Techno.ogy from the Univers:*y

I have bheen employed with Gulf Power s:nce e
arret ng and "oad Managemenrt , T WaS | fun L v
torecasting of customers ana enerIy 1t ove
.evei until [974 und have geen siTilar.y oL nve e
the Corperate level Lince thern.

Srom mid-.976 to (978, I Wa LLE MY el
«lth Sodthern Company Services [(SCS5) ana Data
Hesources, Inc. in the Jdeve! frer: s P
economerric model,

¢ have beep 1n my pr=sent 2aGsitlon 45 Dire
2t Zororate Plann:ing sinces | 38D,

have 2 Bache.or of Science Neqgree 5 Irndislr:

mest Flooroota,

-
=

.

3
~ . -
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Qocket No. 89 345-F1
Witness: Donald P, :l.bert

Please describe ycur responsibilities and dut.es as
the Director of Corporate Planning.

My primary funpction 1S to ensure that Sulf!

fa

planning process :s effective by establ.shing
appropriate policies and procedures whicr orov: ie
consistency and continuity among strateq:c plann:na,
budgeting, forecasting, and performance measuremen: .
In addition, [ coordinate the overal. rlanr:na
etfort, and ! am responsible for *he produc: .on ¢

the CZompany's financial forecast,

What is the purpose of your testimcny?

My purpose ig to provide an averview of the rlann.na
process which results 1n the oroduction nf Su5l¢
financial forecast. The f:nanc:a! forecas® .7 *nre
casis for Gulf's projected data far 1990 isen

his5 rate case, Specificatly, I wil!l presens i
overview of Gulf's planning and budger:irad nrucessa;
outline the assumptions used :n developing Guif' .
tinanc:al forecast; describe the Capita. addir:ans

Judget process, the Operation and “Ma.ntenance Buadge:

process, and Gulf's Responsibility Reporting System,

Have you prepared an exhibit that contains information

to which you will refer in your testimony?
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Jocket 'ig, 79
Witness: Nona.d 2.

Yes,

Counsel: We ask that Mr, G:iwer+'s fxnr.n-e

comprised of 7 Scheduyies, e Tarvel

for :dentification as Txh:bits al-=239

{DPG=-11.

Were all of the schedules in this exhibit prepared

under your supervision?

fes. Zach schedule of this exhibit ~as trenaro:

under my supervision and direct:i:on.

Are you the sponsor of certain Minimum Filing

Requirements (MFRs,?

Yes, These are listed on Scheduie 7 at *he wand

my exhioit. To the best of my ¥nowledar, ~ne
information 1n all of the listed "FRs .35 *r.e

COCrect.

Please describe Schedule 1 of your exhibit.

Schedule ! 15 a flow chart of Gu.f's annua.

4]
7

an angw.na

=y

and budgeting process. THhi

intendea to develop a financ:i:al forecast for _Zse

management as a tool :n making decis:ions affect.r

the future direction of the Company. The chat

shows the e:ght component budgets *har are

r
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Witness:

Jocket No. ~R.345-7F1
Donald F. Silber:
‘aqae 4

tareacast L ]

:ncorporated :into Gulf's financial

relationship among the budgets, and -heir re.at

ship to the financial model. 'n addition ¢ rre

activit:ies 1dentified on Schedu.e |

numervus reviews and approvals by Gulf's Byudgetr

Committee and the Chief Execut:ve Nff:cer 15 wel'

the review and approval of +he Cap:t.

Budget by ocur Board of Directors.
approvals are an .ntegral part of
process, Schedule | .ndicates the

responsible for discussing .n this

component pudget, providing *he assumpt:anc

‘ncorporated in each budget, and devel.oapini * e

financial forecast.

Please i1dentify the eight component

budgets which

are incorporated into Gulf's financ:al forecas:.

The ei1ght component burdgets which -

financ:al fgorecast are -he:

= Zustomer Budge:

= Energy Budget

- Peak Demand Budger
- Revenue Buaget

= Ffuel Audge:t

= Intercnange Budge!

AR S i

3
L}
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Jocket Yio. g9 '45-E
dlrcness: Jonald P.o Giiber
Page
- Capital Additions Budget
- Operation & Maintenance (1) & M} Budde:r
Who will testify on the preparation of the eight
component budgets in Gulf's financial forecast?
As indicated on the flow chart of Schedule ., *he
Customer, Energy, Peak Demand, and Revenus Bidgetrs
are the responsibility of Mr. Kilazre; ke 7 .e.
Budget 1s the responstbility of "r Darccne: - e
interchange Budget .5 the regponsibil.%y of
Mr. Howell, and the Capita. Add:rions Budaer .5 *he
responsibility of Mr., Ccnner, Yr. Howell, “r. "~ raan
r. Lee and Mr. Scarbrough. The Jperation ann
Maintenance Budget wil. be dilscussed by Mr. _ee,
Mr., Howe.l, Mr., Jordan, Mr. Bowers, and
Mr. Scarbrough. ™Mr. McMi..an Wi.. address +ne
interface of the component buddgets Wwith *he
fipancial model i1n his testimony.
Has Gulf Power filed a listing of the assumpt:ons
used in developing Gulf's financial forecast?
Yes. MFR F-17 lists the assumpt:.ons :sed
developing Gulf's financiil farecast and rrne
supporting basis for each assumpt-.cn. Add:-iona..v,

this MFR (ndicates the witness resprins:hle “or
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Witness: Donald P, Gilber:s

63<
891345-£:

Page 6

snecific assumption, Gulf's management nelieves the

assumptions used :n Gulf's financial forecast, 1is

i

utlined on MFR F-17, to be reasonable :n

our experliences and Lhe ClLrCumstances «£nown

the time the assumptiuns were developed,

Who administers the budgeting piLocess?

The Budget Committee administers the tudger.-a

process and approves all component hbudaget

5

“"r. Scarbrodgh serves as the Budge' Tommitree

Chairman.

Schedule 1 shows Corporate Planning's i1nvolvemeat :n

producing Gulf's financial forecast. Would you

describe your department's role?

Primarily, the department .s responsible for
coprdinating the Capital Addlit:ions and 7 & ¥ 3.:ge-
processes. The department 1s alsc respuns.b.e ! .r
prepar:ng for use {1 tne Financial! Mode. -he
tnformacion which (s produced n the apprnved
Revenue, Fuel, Interchaige, Tapita. Acd:it .ons, ind
O & M Budgets. Corparate Planning 15 .ove, ves
analyz.ng and updaring *he financia. mode. gy
ensure accurate faorecasts of the “ompany's f.ranc:a
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Witness: "onald =2, 2

Please describe Gulf's Capital Additions Budger?
The Capital Additions Budget consists of Plant
Expend:ture (PE) projects for additiona. rroper:
covering a period of si1x years. The PE
categorized by Hajor Seneratian,
Businesys, Transmission, Distribution, Joint S.o
Line, Genera® Plant, and Miscellaneous tems.
FZ's are jdentified as Specific PE's, Accumu.ati¢
PE's, and Blanket PE's. Specyfic PE's ar=s gr . ‘'w
costing $50,000 or more that are _.nd:v:dtua. .-
nature and may reqguire expenditures .n oRe o o~
years. Accumulat:on PE's .nc.iude .nd:vidual
projects that generally ~ost lessc chap $50, 70,
each .ndividual prejecr [isted as 2 line  cen

PE, Blanket PE's include repat . m.ive -, pe —.a°°
additions which are not easgi.y def . fel o«
distinguished as individual or ceparate ;ro

the t:me the bidgetr .s prepaged.

When 1s the Capital Additions Budge. prepared:
There are two reMISIansS Lo tie Zagita. S
Budget =2ach vyear occurring .n Fenrsary an = e
The February revision inciUdes .nfareseer ~aw

revised projects for the budger cear, afc . 5rmeres
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Docker ‘lo. B9]1345-%7
Witnesgss: Donald P. “ilbers
Page E

previous year to the budget vear (Un:intenr:.ona!
carryovers); or projects accelerated from a fsrecasr
Year to the budget year. The February revisian
:ncludes one budget vear and five forecast years of
.nformation. The October revision .ncludes rhne
final budget estimate of the current vear, ang *he
initial budget for the coming /ear, LncC.id.:nG new
and revised projects, The Dctover revis.on :ncludes
two budget years (*he current year hucget :nz *he
conversion of the firat forecast year to a tadget

year) and four forecast years.

Who is responsible for developing the Plant
Expenditure (PE) projects and preparing the
necessary documentation?

The gersonnel re~ponsihiie for *ne approbriacr
funcrtional operating areas are [esponsib.e far = ne
Plant Expenditures. The ma~sr part.an of *ne
Capital Additions Budge- .s oZrepared ander * e

direction af Mr. Lee, Mr.

Who is redponsible for reviewing the Plant

Expenditure projects and the overall Capital

Additions Budget?

The Director o: Manager responsible for each rlane
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“itness:

categary of a PE 18 required tno s:an "he PF -

signify his review and approval. »f the
Jralect,

responsible for reviewi'ng al! PE's and

The Capi:ta. Hudget Rev:ew Tomm.**ae

the recommerded Capita. Adéit:ons 3Judger ' -

Budget Committee for final approval.

and approval by the Budget Committes and ' he

President, the budget 15 submitted o

€ Directors for final approval.

ol5
Jacket o, 591345-
Jonald P. 3ilhe
Page
r'__,,""'JE.Rﬂ‘
subBmysr =g
Fe
After raview
Tl lf': 8narnqd

What is the Corporate Planning Department's rale 1n

the Capital Additions Budget process?
Corpecrate Planning performs ma.n., in
role 1n coordinating the rreparat:an

:

Additions Budget, (orporate Plann:ng
P

for developing -“he Capita! Add:tions Aud

schedu.e, assJdring the PE's are nrepared

accordance with Companv's procedures,

PE's for the review and apbroval! process, an-d

prepar:ng the approved Capital ddir:ons 3iace

interface with the Financia. Moge.,

Does Gulf monicor the actual construcet

Lon

expenditures against 1ts approved budget?

Yes. On a monthly Hasis my Tenartrent

{ e .

T

i

oY v

L8]

-. B
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29
P,

“opy of the Comparison of P.ant Txpena.thdres -

Sudgetr Committee members and Directors and

n‘qan

responsible for the Capital Additions Judger-.

compar:son indicates the deviation from budae:

amount and percent for each PFE, each rlant

and total Budget for the current month and

for's R

vear-to-date. Whenever a PE has a year-to-dat

budget varlance of either [0 percent or §2
whichever 1s .ess (less than $10,000 neec

reported], a summar:zed report :s be prepa

Cr
5 Bl f

regponsible Director and sent to the appropria

Vice President, A copy of this report =19

responsible Vice President :s sent o "he

Flnancial Planning. The report expla:ins t

the reasons for the deviation, -he acrt.an
contemplated to bring the project an s3onec
an estimate of the budget status at vear-g

completion ¢f the project, TE 1S thHe resp

of my Department tno epsure this -antri.

What 1= the amount of Gulf's 19%0 Capital
Budget?

Gulf's total 1990 Capital Additions vudget

$62.2 mi1llion. Schedule . of my exhitit ch

1990 Capital Addi*:ons 3Fudget oy cateqory.,

ned

Mana

"

Add:

Lk
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Jocket No. 29134%-F1
witness: Donald P. JFilber+
Tage .
3ddition, 1t shows the witness respons:ole for *he
PE's :ncluded in each category. Those witnesses ire
rrepared to discuss the appropr:ate port:n ¢ vne

Capital Additions Budyet.

Would you please state the purpose of vour testimony
as it relates to the O & M Budget?
describe the

I will preparation process anc prov:ie

an overview of Lne assumptions (sed S rrepare Coae
980 O & M Budget. The following ndividca s are

responsitle for and are nreparec "o address -oe

speci1fic assumptions, details, and expianations
related to the 1990 C & M Budget *o. *he .nd:zaed
finctions,
Altness Funcoion

-« 2. Lee 2roduct Lon

M. W. Howel! Transmiss.oun

C. E. Jordan Distribution: ransoor . S

W. 2. Bower Customer Servi.ce 4

The assumptions and

1950 O & M Budgercs

their support.ng

48

cnformat tons Sal

Customer ACCuwh

Admin:s

i

General

Out L 1head

Pop o - [
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wWitness: Donald P, Siloer

What .s the amount of Gulf's 1990 O & M Budget?

The 1990 O & M Budget, excliusive of direct Zue. and
rurchased power, :s $129.7 miilion. Schedu.» I of
my exhibit sumrarizes the (990 0 & M 3udger uy maior

functional categor:es,

Please describe the Corpo-ate Plann.ng Department's
role in preparing Gulf's O & M Budget,

Corporate Planning 1s

L |

esponsible for maiptas;niny
logical process for the oreparat:on 2f the tudger,
for adminlster:ing the process udnder the “iroct.on ot
the Budget Committee, and fnr croviding rne 2.daer
Committee with the i1nformation they need * . =are
budgetary decisions, Schedule 4 of my exnhit:t .s 3
flow chart outlining the O & M 3udget procers, o-

addition to the Comnarny-w«.2e budget coord.nas ., .

]

responsibility, I am respons:hle for orepar:.~i

Corporate Planning's departmental huydager

Would you describe the process of preparing Culf's
O &« M Budget, exclusive of fuel and purchasec power?
Referring to my Schedule 4, *he first LAl T o SRR e d
O & M Budget process 1s the :ssuance ~f ‘re Corporare
Business Plan. Each department, as a3 oldanr:ns snit,

then prepares objecrtives and goals Whicn 3ddress .
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direction and major emphacsis fo

-

the caming Jear.

e
.

]

The planning unit goals and oblect.ves SUPED
specific goals :ncluded :n the Corporate 2us.ness
Pian. Once developed, the department's goa.s ind
objlectives are reviewed and approved by Sulf's
management. After the individual departments' nals
and objectives are approved, 3 Hudget Mecsage .=
1ssued by the Budget Committee Chairman. The 3udager
Yessage outlines the various tudget 3Ju: ie.:nes ind
parameter assumptions and provides the Reference
Level for each department for use i1n prepar.ng ‘e

O & M Budget. The Reference Level .:s def:ned ird
establ.shed each year by the Budget Comm:ztee, The
planning units are required to Justify :ncreases og
decreases i1n expenses from the Reference lLeve.. e
Reference Level determines *he amount f
documentation required to oe rubmitted to *rhe Audger

Committee for review in the nudget approval nrocess,

How did the Budget Commi:tee define the Reference
Level for the 1990 0O & M Budoget?

The 1990 Reference Level .:s calculated to re *re

1989 Budget less 1) 1989 Corporate Control.ed
expenses, 2} 1989 nonrecurring :tems, and 1) salar:es

for positions which were budgeted .n (989 pur +ad
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Adicness: Jdonald P.

not heen added tu rthe Zomplemen: or wh:ich wers
pudgeted in 1989 but had not been approved faor

£1lling for 1< months.

Please describe what is meant by Corporate
Controlled items?
Items included :n Gulf's budget as Corporate

Controlled represent larqe dollar sxpenditures

reguire the act:on of eirther an .ndividua. »the

than the person responsible for monitaring ! 5e

a group of individuals, nr the input of sthe:

companief to control the expenditure. Examo. o

Corporate Controlled expenses include "he expers

2

age 4
Wi s
Lem,

of Plant Daniel, Plant Scherer, Pensian and Apne’ -

costs, Southern Company Services hillings, e

and Bo:iler Inspections, and Transmissicon

Rentals, Giulf removes the Corporate

expenses when <Talculating the Referenc “eve.:=

specific pianning uniis to pruper!y ref.ec:

Reference Level only truase expendituires oswer ~roo:

the department head has ZJirect cantrao..

What is meant DYy nonrecurring items as used 1in

Gulf's budget process?

Nonrecurring i1 ems are defined as r~hose . -ems
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de not recur for 4“he planning ! .n rine

Yyear but may recur :(n fatdre vYears or ne
s J

other planning J4n.ts. Major zerioglc ann

activities a.e included as nonrecurr:ng

What was the purpose of the salary adiustment

in calculating the 1990 Reference Level?

As i1ndicated previously, we made an ardius

calculating the .390 Reference 'eve. AJr.-

“he 1989 budgeted salartes for *hnse

posicions which had not heen aadec »o *rhe

and those vacant DOS:itI0ONS whl

complement
been approved for f:71ling for .2
adjustment was made so that all

atfected would

- RN i .
e T3St L s

be required *g
nOSLt10nNsS on AcCt:ivity

adjustment did not :indicate that the pos:

not approved, nnly *hat Lf

opudgeted that

1
T

i
m

position, 1t

provide current Just:ification for tpe

ta

Have any other salary related adiustment
in the 1990 O & M budget?

Yes, In addition to tne salary

Gulf mace an adiustment *o &l m-or

AT

above,

Ay stment

Analysis (8-41 1orme

ol -0

n
9
w

made

t Mt

L

made

heen
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Aitness: 3onald P. ji1lpert
Tage &
salaries asuocilated with vacanc.es 3 usen r o EaTma
personnel turnover.
How was this adjustment calculated? g
ek
Gulf analyzed itz vacancies for the +wfive ~orrg,
period ending August 1989 and determ:nen *‘rar, r
average, 42 vacancies exi.sted Which w~erne f e
process of being filled,. includead .n rhe average ot
42 vacancles were 4 poOSi1tiONT wNiCh wWRI® e Tt gt e
in the .990 budget resulting n 8 vacanci
process of being filled. We then neterm.ne? o
average salary of rthe new employees “irend o Vi)
during the same perioc and applied 'ri: average
salary to the 386 wvacanciec, After aagnus+t.rnag rrnis
calculatron to reflect the u4se of nuroaastes
temporary employees =g fi1l]l trese vacs e, B
resulting amount was $447,.00. Approx.mate.w,
$378.,000 relates to 0 & % expense, Theraf-re, rre
1990 O & M Budget has vpeen reducen iy §373, '
reflect this hiring lag.
Please describe the O & Y Budget process after the
issuance of the Budget Message.
Upon -eceipt of tie Budget Messau~ eac, Zeépartnent
prepares the deta)led budget «p.cn 3upDorts TS
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Jocket No, &
Witness: DJona.d P.

approved goals and objectives for 'ne budger
The budget represents the funds the cepartmen
maragement determines are reguirvd ta accomp.
goals and objectives. The deta:led sydager 5
reviewed and appraoved by the responsibie Vicae
President. After the department's hudget hac
reviewed and approved by the V:ce Pres:denr,
submitted to Corporate Planning. Jurporate
reviews the documentation for rompl.ance w.t-
Cumpany guidelines and compiles the acata for
by the O & M Review Committee,

The 0 & M Review Committee .7 estaclisnea
Budget Committee and 15 charged with review
the Resources Reguests submitted. Upoen comp.

of the review the Committee makes a re-ommenas

[

to the Budgetr Committee regard:n3 *"re aporoor:

level of O & M expenses t7 approve. The R 43
Committee reviews and approves rne resnirce
after consider:g the 2 & M Heview ~omm: . 'e#s
recommendation., After the i1nitial aporova.,
resources by the Budget Tommittee, each celar
provides the FERC account 4istribut:ons for
approved resources. At this t:ime, eacn depar
also forecasts O & M expenses for the nex. f3

years., An explanation i1s provided !ar ny o ac

e
Q-

bl § WS

Lai

M 3 oun
]

3 ¥ s

Qe v
¥ R

SeE T,

«20 by

.
o
a

n.,nag

B T ohe

AE [ -OE

i

T Nt




[~

et

| 3]
]

2
23
24

25

"
L=
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Witness: Donaid P.
rage

which c¢hanged dur:ng the projected periocd oy an

amount which was diffe

Ly
L%
[

ent from the projected rate
>f inflation. Once rthe account numLer ass.gnments
and projections & e developed and approved =v
departmental management, the budget amounts and

forecasts are reviewed and approved by the Budage:r

Committee and by the President.

How does Gulf's budget process incorporite the

Foa e

it ks

:8

budget variances from the prior year into the budget

estimate for the upcoming opudget vyear?

During July ana Auguic <f each year as *'he p.ann:na
units devel'op their O & M budgers, the budae:r
variance reports for the current and previous sears
are Ltilized. These, along with the rnow.elis,
axper.ence, and professiona. ‘udgemert £ - he
management of each planning «nit, determine -t
affect the variances might r might not have on rhe
budget year.

During the review process performed »y »re b

ot}

Review Committee, the bucger and ac: |
expenditures, by FERC Account, for each vlilan~ n4g
unit for the years 198. — .989 (6 months erieq 'une

1989) were reviewed. The department heads we:rw

guestioned as to the effect certain siarn:ficans
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variances had on individual planning 2nit tudger s
and, i:f approprlate, the budgets were adiustez,

The Budget Zommittee was a:s0 provided :iager
and actual amounts by planning unit for use .pn the.r

review pricr ‘o approving the 1980 7 & M Budger.

Mr. Gilbert, has the Company included in 1ts budgeted
Operations and Maintenance (0 & M) expenses any
nonrecurring expenses which should be disallowed?

No. Gulf's nonrecurring expenses a5 I nave ief. -ed
on page 14, cons:ist of $7,158,205%. Turoine an’
doiller expenses and Vehicle Rebu:ids ~hichn re

from year to year on different units account
$5,340,000 and $116,500 respectively, of 1

£7,.158,205, The remaitning $1,701,70% is5 nos

excessive amount of pertnd:ic or cyc..cal expenge !
a representative test year. Althouah rhass spe

activitles will not recur next yea:, similar

activities will occur. Thi «8 a Tongervatilve

L

estimate of cyclical activities for «<hich Jd.f «il

have "o budget peyond (%910,

How are the costs associated with the recent Federal
investigations of Gulf rower handled 1n this case?

Gulf has identified $615,000 asscciated wirn ' he




Jocket Mo,
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Witness:

Federal .nvest.zat:oanm .n o1t s

has made a !et Operating !ncome

(4 LA

remove rhese oudgeted expenditdres

in this case.
stockholders.

Mr. McMillan's testimony.

In Gulf's plea agreement with

Government, several specific

These costcs will

payments to various political,

pe ourne oy

“hese adjustments 37e

civic,

instances
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the United States

and other

orjanizations made by vendors and then billed to

Gulf as some other expenses.

Are any of these

o

expenditures included in Gulf's 1990 0 & © budget?

It {s my opinion tha* *hese

are not .ncluded i1n Gulf's 1990

gquestinnable gay

3 ik

WMo EEEe

tollowing reasons: {1} The nxpend.tires . e
in the later years of -“he plea agreemen:” L
1989) related almost exclusively r ayme-t
through advertising agencies, In A 989 Suaf
ceasing to do business with the agenc.es ren
ln the plea agreemen:t and 'nHe:r caontrace o

being renewed in the futire,
that Gulf could ne required

these agencies 1n the “uture

advertising proqram with various GCu:’

3

|

nake

chrovgh

It shou.d he

1Ymen® s
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were cited of
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this program a builder could select cne ~f *re=p
agencies and Gulf wWould he required "o pay a porsian
of rthe builder's advertising costs d.ractl; * . tLnese
agencies. This 1n no way detracts from tne fac:
that the questionable payments are not ,nc..ded .n
Gulf's 1990 O & M Budget. In :99%90 advertis.ng
tnitiated by Gulf will be handied bty a new agency
which was chosen through a thorougr sel
process, This new agency .S no! 3iss0Ciated «i.*n any
juestionable dealings mentioned (n the piea
agreement, (2) The plea agareement mentianed ©rat
reta.ner fees were used to reimburse vendar:z o
several questionable payments. There .5 7o retainer
fee for the new advertisinag agency budgetsad .5 9970,
{3) The Companv's business dealings &i2n Ray Yowell
ceased Ln late [988. The graphiC art.st LAV
activities performed by Mr. Howel! nave neer
performed 1n (989 1n house ot by other vendors. The
1930 budget 15 based upon tne -"osts .ncdrtes .o L9389
fo: those graphic services not on 198d's cost.

(4} There Wwere no questicnavle :tems noted . . 3IAY

by the plea agreement.

What rate of inflation ic used by Gulf in the

preparation of its Operatior & Maintenance (0O & M}

= ® wa
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Budget?
The Budget Message 1ssued by the Budget Committee
includes the i1nflat:on rate to be used by the

-

planning units i1n preparing -“he 7 & M budger+, The
rate inc.Jdded (n the Budget Message :5 tne _arese
available estimate of the Consumer Pr:i:ce Index -
Urvan for the budget and forecast years at *he *.me

th2 Budget Message :35 1ssued., The rate of .nt.ation

fcr 1990 used 1n preparting the O & M pudget .t §,4%.

HoW is this inflation rate used by the planning

un:its?
This inflation factor is used by the planning nuts
to escalate the nonlabor expenses, either nudae: r

ac.ual, when such escalation :5 the most appror.,ate

me*'hod of budgeting the expense,

How 1s the O & M Budgeting process used by Gulf
Power Company?

Gulf uses the budgeting process 4S8 a comprehens: Ve
mahagement tocl both to plan and to concrol tne
Company's ogperations. Thrnugh the budget.rg
prncess, we establish goals, objectives, and
pr.orities, attempt to anticipate events, anc

es'ablish the appropr:i:ate level of expenses., The
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proce:s permits us *o address and appr.ve *°
specific dollar impact of selected operat:na
alternatives, Additionally, the O & ™M RBudge:
spproved by the Budget Committee 15 a iflrecr naput
into our Responsibility Report.ng 3ystem «~h.on
produces monthly Budqget Compar:son Reports. These
reports compare actual amounts to budgered anmounts
and provide dellar and percent var:ances by account

ume-rr and by responsibility .Laocatian,

Do intermediate and lower level manager: receive
Budget Comparison reports?
Yes, they <o, It 15 Gulf's pn:losaphy "ha' *rhe

individual nreparing a budger :s5 als2 *He a4y tual

w
L
v
)
T
*
[¥i)
1

responsibhle for controlling &h

T
<
i

Fate

iown through the suapervisory

Sud :et Compari:son reports,

Does Gulf's upper management monitor the C mpany's
actual performance as rompared to rhe budget?

Yes., Schedule £ 1s an exampiv ~f a 3JaAger Var.ance
report. Each gquarter the da2pariments ire reg.. a1
Lo submit Budget Variance reports wh:c-h (n&) s
explanations for significant variances from budaer

and projections of the year-end variancers ny FTERC
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account. Those reports are submitted +n sva
appropriate Vice President for approva..
Significant projected year-end var:ancee gre
presented to the Budgetr Committee for review and

approval.

Does Guif have a method to review possible
exceptions to the approved O & M Bucget?

Any activity reduiring funding 2f more v rman (.5, .00
during the budget year, not providea !ar .n --e
budjget, must be presented to tne Budaer “omm.res

for approval or disapproval.

Have the financial model results and the various
component budgets been reviewed by an outside varty?
fes, “r. Mark R. Bell, an exper: ~i-ness, f FivF
Andersen & Company has provided tesr:mcny =

case relating to his review of "hHe accuracy ;¢
which the Company's budget.ny pracess fare 53¢ v
test peri1od financ.al resuits, the overal.
reasonablieness of the assumpt:.ons made py * e
Company to develop those results, and * ne
consistency of the data used :n applving thnose
assumptions throughout the forecast, Mr. He]

evajuated the financial forecast aga:inst =he AICPA

.

FEA
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Ni*ness: lona

Suitdel:nes for Prospect.ve Fimancia, =t
His testimony srates *hat ne found:

.- -the system used oy +the Company ~ont
~lth relevant preofessional stardaris,
idequate for 1tsS purpose, .3 ComMp.ete
iogicalliy founded, and can re rel.eqd
nroduce cans.stent, reliable regilts,

a =
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How is the financial model]l utilized 1n preparing

Guli{'s financ:al forecast:

The autputs from Guli's huadaet oo

4
-y
-

.

tne ei1ght component hudgets, wther ,acom
sheet accounts, anc tne Tinanc.a. asSsumgp
input .reo the finapcial mode., &shicn
generates the fipancia. and account.ina
rnat ~omprise Gulf's financral forecase
Trepared

el e e amer gl cmededl o der §

Mr. Gilbert, would you please summar:ze
testimony?

Gulf ie1lizes a wery strayantfnrwarsz,
CDmpTELPHSLVE process (o sy na e

Tamponent :}quf’ftﬂ rhat 1T (adoroarated

financ:al forecast. This npudger:ng roc

your

-

ens

performed annually and :2sults in a farecas:

management Jses a4s 4 LQO. (0 DReannonitd o an

i
LR
v
-y
Tl
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making, We belleve the assumptions ronta.ne

pudget are reasonable :n light of our exper.ences

percepti:ons of tne future and that -hey have
obtained frum the best sources ava:ilable at
the budgets were developed, Gu.f i1nputs :re

informaticn contained in the ei1ght component

otner income and balance sheet accounts, and

Tae

#Aach

oeen

nudgers,

¥

-

financial assumptions into i1 detailed computo;-

financial model that generates "he acTount.:

statements that comprise nur financial farecas:

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes, :t does.

rime

asen

and
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Q (By Mr. Stone) Mr. Gilbert, do you have a

summary of your testimony?

A I do.
Q Please proceed.
A The purpose of my testimony is to provide an

overview of the planning and budgeting process which 1is
resulting in the production of Gulf’s financial
forecast. This financial forecast is the basis of
Gulf’s projected data for the 1990 test year used In
this case.

Specifically, I have provided. in addition to
the overview of the planning and budgeting process, an
outline of the assumptions used in the forecast, a
description of the capital additions budgeting process,
a description of the operation and maintenance budget
process, a description of the responsibility reporting
system.

I have also identified the eight component
budgets which a-e inputs to our financial forecast, and
I have identified the witness or the witnesses who will
testify on each of those budgets.

I have also testified on why I am convinced
that no amounts associated with the prior illegal
activities as identified in Gulf‘s plea agreement with

the United States government are included 1n this case.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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In summary, I would like to remind that you
that Gulf’s planning and budgeting process is performed
annually. It is a logical, straightforward process,
based on the goals and cbjectives of the Company. We
use this budget in our day-to-day operation of the
Compzny. The assumptions used in the budget and the
financial forecast are from the best source available
at the time the budgets and forecast were developed.

And in conclusion, 1 would like to point out
that this forecast is Gulf‘s plan of operation for
1990. And I believe that this forecasting process,
along with the commitment of Gulf's management to keep
costs low, 1s what has allowed Gulf historically to
maintain our operating costs per kilowatt hour as cne
of the lowest in the Southeast.

That concludes my summary.

MR. STONE: I tender Mr. Gilbert four cross
examination.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Mr. Stone, wer= his
exhibits among those that were stipulated to?

MR. STONE: That is correct.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Thank you.

MR. BURGESS: We have no guestions.

MR. BURGESS: We have no guestions.

MR. PLLECKI: Staff has a few gquestions.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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We’d like to ask abor* the adjustments made o0 remove
the effective vacancies on the labor complement.
CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. PALECKI:
Q Did you make an adjustment in the filing to

consider vacant positions?

A Yes, sir, I did.

Q Arnd how many vacancies have you listed?
A In that adjustment?

Q Yes.

A The method we used in looking at that

adjustment was to look at the first eight months of
1989 and average that period. The vacancies, the
approved vacancies during that period of time, varied

from a high of 49 to a low of 38. They averaged 42.

In our budget message for the ’'90 budget, we

had adjusted several types of positions that were in

the complement or not in the complement from the

reference level, asking the planning units t» come back

and rejustify those positions.
Three of the vacancies that were on our

vacancy list at the time that we were making the

adjustment had been dropped from the complement. So we

took those out -- actually it was four, not three --

which gave us a figure of 38 positions as being

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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representative of a typical turnover rate for Gulf
Power Company.

Q Mr. Gilbert, could you provide us, as a
late-filed exhibit for each of those 38 positions on
the job title, the beginning and maximum salary level
for that position, the functional group of expenses
that the salari~s would be charged, and finally, the
amount of the adjustment made by Gulf by function. And
I would like that as late-filed exhibit entitled, "Tata
on Adjustment for Vacant Positions."

MR. STONE: Mr. Palecki, may I ask you a
guestion? Did you realize that the vacancies he's
talking about are averages over the period and,
therefore, it might be difficult to identify specific
-- as 1 understand it, it was the average vacancy.

WITNESS GILBERT: That’s correct.

MR. STONE: When you‘re talking about -- it’s
a dynamic thing where the actual job pcsitions out are
going to differ over time.

Q (By Mr. Palecki) Weren’t *here specific
vacancies that you’ve referred to in the
interrogatories, in the data that you supplied tre

Staff?

A There are two sets of data. The first was

that supporting the calculaticon that I made in this

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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case. And what I thought you were asking for was the
data supporting that calculation. The second set of
data was provided in my rebuttal testimony, which was a
single month’s vacancy at a point in time, specifically
as of May Bth. When you take a point in time, you can
look at the specific positions in the vacancy. When
you do it over a period of time, it is a dynamic thina.
it dees invelve several groups of salaries. (Pause)

Q We would like to have tnat information for
the point in time that you’ve referred to.

A The May 8th that I provided in my rebuttal
testimony? We can do that.

CHAIRMAN WILSCGN: All right, that would be
5657

MR. PRUITT: That 1s correct,

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Late-filed.

MR. PALECKI: Short title would ke "Data on
Adjustment for Vacant Positionss."

(Late-Filed Fxhibit No. 565 identified.)

Q (By Mr. Palecki) Gulf has budgeted
approximately 11.5 million in fringe benefits for 19%0,
or an increase of about $441,000 over 1989, is that
correct?

A Subject to check, yes, 1’'d say that's

correct.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q Can you explain how the budgeted amounts for
fringe benefit: was developed?
A You would have to loock at several different
accounts, but let me see if I can sinmplify it.

With the exception of payroll taxes, Gulf
uses a method based on the previous year’'s actual
employees, and that is brought forward to the budgeted
year for pensions, medical insurance, employee savings
plan, everything that is in benefits, with the
exception of payroll tax, lags one year. It is based
on the data through May from the previous year, and is
not inflated, with the exception of payrcll is
concerned, merit increase assumption. And therefore,
it’'s not reasonable, in making a vacancy adjustment, to
adjust out benefits other than payroll ctaxes. We don't
include the growth in employees in those benefit
estimates. We base is on last year’s employces.

Another way to say that is that for 1990's --
ra1’s budget, we will base it on the actual number of
employees we have in 1990, or for 1990‘s budget, we
base it on the actual number of employees we had in
1989. It has nothing to do with the vacancy rate.

Vacancy rate does not enter into it.

Q We'd like an additional late-filed. Could

you include in ithis late-filed a detailed listing of

FIORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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each fringe benefit shown on Schedule C-33, Page 100 ol
the C Schedules, the amount budgeted, less your
adjustment included in the filing? If there are no
individual fringe benefits associated with those vacant
positions, could you provide a detailed explanation for
the omission?

A Let me .larify one thing. When you say the
adjustment made in the filing, we made no adjustment to
benefits in the filing.

Q Could you explain that, please?

A When we made our vacancy adjustment, we did
not include the benefits because we didn’t feel like 1t
was appropriate. We did not include payrocll taxes, 1in
error. We should have included payroll taxes. WwWe did
not. So, in fact, any adjustment we made in my
prefiled testimony, we made no adjustment *to benefits.

My guestion to you is, since we made none,
it’s not necessary that we include any adjustment to
benefits.

Q We’ll witharaw that reguest ior the
late-filed.

Mr. Gilbert, you have been listed by Gulf as
a witness who is available to testify concerning the
Audit Disclosure No. 42, which specificallv is the

assertion that Gulf Power does not true up its current

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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year’s reference level for variances resulting from the
previous year. And I refer you to Page 80 of 114 of
Exhibit No. 430.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Excuse me just a minute.
Did we get a number for that late-filed exhibit you
just asked for?
MR. PALECKI: We withdrew that.
CHAIRMAN WILSON: You withdrew that, okay.
Q (By Mr. Palecki) Specifically, the Staff’'s
assertion is that they have been unable to verify
Gulf’s representations that it has trued up the
reference levels, and I have a copy of Gulf’s Audit
Disclosure which was filed June 11th, 1990, wherein
Gulf asserts that it has provided verification and
basically asserts that it has trued up it‘s current
year reference levels. Are you able to provide any
documentation for the assertions that you’ve made?
And, specifically, I'm referring to audit disclosure
No.42, budget variances and the company comm¢nt
thereon?
A Let me clear up one thing. The disclosure
states that we don’t true up the reference level for
budget deviations.

Q Correct.

A That in itself is a true statement. With the

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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exception that in the 1990 budget message we did remove
two types o employees from the compliment. Employees
that were not in the compliment were subtracted from
the reference level, employees that had not been where
the positions had been vacant for 12 months were
removed from the vacancy level.

Now, the other point I’d like to make at this
time is that truing up the reference level and truing
'1p our budget estimates are two separate things, and
let me explain that.

Gulf begins it’s budgeting process by issuing
a corporate business plan. That'’s macde up of goals and
objectives in the strategic direction of the company.
The 17 planning units then develop their own guals and
objectives, in support of the corperate goals and
objectives.

Once those are approved, they then develop a
budget that supports those goals and objectives. The
method used in developing those budgets are zero based
budgeting methodology, trending methodology, or they
may take their estimates direct from a contractural
agreement. Those estimates are developed completely
independent of the reference level. That reference
level is very similar to the Commission’s benchmark.

The Commission goes back to a year that its

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVIUCE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

532
comfortable with, in this case the 1984 rate cace of
Gulf Power Company. It builds forward using customer
growth and inflation, until it reaches a level of
expenses for the questioned year and then has the
company explain any deviation above that expense level.
Guif’s reference level is very similar to that.

The year we're most comfortable with is the
previovs yvear’s bhudget but rather than add two we
subtract from that reference level in order to get more
detailed explanations. So, when you say that we did
not true up the reference level, we did for vacancies,.
That is totally different than saying we did not true
up our budget estimates for budget variations because
we did that.

And I think for a Macro test, if you just look at
our 1989 budget versus our 1990 budget, cdr ’9%0 budget
only increased four-tenths of 1% over our ’‘BS% budget,
so I think that’s indication *hat we have taken into
consideration budget variance in developing that
budget. I will say that the Staff’s statement that wc
did not include it in our reference level is partially
correct but not totally correct.

Q When you assert that you have taken into
consideration budget variances, and you have asserted

that in your audit disclosure, in reponse to this audit

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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report, what documentation have you provided to that
effect?

A We have two methods by which we capture
budget deviation. Quarterly we do a budget deviation
report. Each department looks at their budget
variances, they explain them, over certazin preset
dollars amounts, and they then make an estimate ol
where they will be at year end. Though this is a
separate operation from the budget it’s an integral
part of the budget, in that beginning immediately with
the first month we issue those budget deviations the
planning unit begins to see where their assumptlons may
have been wrong, they may see changes in scope 1n
cpecific projects.

The way our system 1= set up, rather than
handle the budget deviation on the front end by
adjusting the reference level as the Staff suggests, we
handled it on the back end of cur budget process
through what we call modified activities. We have a
modified -- a new and modified activity form called a
B4,

The B4 reflects the changes to the budgel
over the reference level. When you look at those Bds,
which have been provided to the Staft, 22% uf them are

negative B4s, they subtract from the refe:rence level.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Many of those are budget deviations. And if you’ve got
the time, I‘d be glad to read from them to show you how
those are captured.

Q That won’t be necessary. 1 just have a
couple more questions. Your rate, request for rate
increase in this docket, is one-balf million dollars
greater than your reguest in the docket that was
withdrawn, the rate case that was withdrawn last year,
is that courrect?

A Subject to check, I believe that’s correct.

Q What was the amount of fine that was charged
by the Federal Court as a result of your plea of
guilty?

A It‘s a half million deollars, but it has
nothing to do with that increase.

MR. PALECKI: Thank you. [ have no further
guestions.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Commissicners?

COMMISSIONER BEARD: HNo.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: 1 have one guick one.
Can you make just as quick a statement as to the reason
why the half million is more than the original rate
case reguest?

WITNESS GILBEKT: Well, there are a number ot

factors. We’ve had one year of growth. You had the

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISS.ON
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effect of inflation that’s one more year. We had mer:it
increases one more year, which would all far exceed the
half million.

We had offsets in reductions to our budget
where we had either changed programs, where we had
negotiated better prices, or whatever. We had
negative changes to last year’s budget of about 700 --
excuse me, $7.5 million.

So some things went down, inflaticn and merit
went up, and so it’s just purely circumstantial that
the difference between the two reguests in this case
happens to be a half million.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Remind me, did I see a

document that delineates the differences between the twe

cases that comes close to providing that information?

WITNESS GILBERT: I’'m not sure, I don’'t
recall.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: 1 may be thinking of
something in the tax case.

MR. HOLLAND: Commissioner Easley, ! think
there is an exhibit to Mr. Scarbrough’s testimony, if
I'm not mistaken, that compares ‘B89 actual to ‘90

budget. Let me --

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: But that’s not directly

to the two rate case requests, as I recal..
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MR. HOLLAND: No, it doesn’t, it doesn’t
reconcile the $500,000. I don’t think there is.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: You don’t remembe- a
document that does that?

MR. HOLLAND: No, ma'’am.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Yes, because the MFERs
give you ‘89 actuals and '90 projections. They are
full of those tables.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Yes.

MR. HOLLAND: Right.

COMM1SSIONER GUNTER: But not rate relief
request to rate relief request --

MR. HOLLAND: Right, correct.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Yeah.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: -- that I’'ve been able
to find.

MR. HOLLAND: No, I don't think so.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Would that be a real
difficult document to come up with?

WITNESS GILBERT: It would be --

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Pretty extensive, I
would guess.

WITNESS GILBERT: -- an extensive document,
because we did not take last year’s request and add

$500,000 to it.
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COMMISSIONER EASLEY: I understand that.

WITNESS GILBERT: Every line item in this
case changed because that’s the way we do our budget.
We start from scratch.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: FKr. Gilbert, I don’t
have any inquiry, but I'm trying to understand Issue /4
and what efforts the Company went through, Issue 74 on
Page 40 of the Prehearing Order.

WITNESS GILBERT: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: And the 1ssue is, "Has
the Company properly removed from the 1990 expenses all
costs related to the IRS grand jury and other similar
investigations?”

Would you explain what you all did, how you
all went about that to make sure that none of those
costs were there? You know, that’‘s a -- it‘s just sort
of a curious kind of thing with me as to what act.ons
you all took. I don’t find anywhere, you know,
everybody says, "Well, we did that," but I don’t know
how, how you all went through making the determinatiorn
of what should be removed, what should be left, 2nd
what have you.

WITNESS GILBERT: | will be glad to do that.

COMMISSTONER GUNTER: Okay.
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WITNESS GILBERT: First, we started with two
documents. Let me begin by saying that we had already
put our budget together at the time trat Gulf entered
into a plea agreement with the United States
Government, so that document came after-the-fact.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Sure.

WITNESS GILBERT: What I did heve was our
Auditing Department’s notes, thelir Audit Reports. What
we touk was those two documents -- the Audit Reports
of the investigations of Gulf Power Company, the plea
agreemert from the United States Government, and they
did have additional information through thelr subpoena
power that we did not have.

We took those documents. First, we reviewed
those against our 1990 budget work papers for every
planning unit. We went back in and we physically
looked for any items. The thing we gleaned from that
was that most of these in the -- let me back up a

second. We also looked at previous years.

The thing we gleaned from that was that many

of these activities, illegal activities, took place
through retainers. Where they weren’t through
retainers, they were substituted and displaced budgeted
items and were disguised as budgeted items, mostly 1in

the advertising area.
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Gulf does not budget for illegal activities,
as do most companies, you just don’t do that. Although
most companies, I'm sure, have some type of illegal
activities they’re unaware of, you just don’t budget
for thos2 things. So what we had was items that had
been presented for a specific purpose through the
budget proceses that were diverted to the other
activities and disguised as a budgeted activity.

Now, some things that I know about 1990 that
would prohibit these expenses from being there and
hopefully from anything like this happening ajain --
although no budgeting process would protect you from
the type of collusion that went on:

I know that those retainers are not there.
They have bean physically removed. They’re not in the
budgel.

I know that the agenciles involved no longer
nave contracts with the Company.

I know that the individuals invelved 1in this
who ~ere part of the collusion are ro longer with the
Company. Specifically, where most of the problems were
involved was in advertising. Those advertising
agencies are no longer there. The ‘90 budget was put
togather with the help of a new advertising agency, and

1 feel very comfortable that what we have identified is
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some legal f-~es on behalf of the Company and SES.

And we did overlook one thing, we weren’t
perfect. Imbedded in one of the new activity forms was
a $5,000 expense for Arthur Andersen in anticipation of
their support of us on any presentations to the
Board’s, or review with our Bcard of Directors. And we
caught that after we filed the case and we have
stijulated to that.

I feel very comfortahle that we have removed
everything associated with that.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Let me asl you a
question. The only time previously I can recall we
we: e in a situation like this was back when ATLT was
involved in the anti-trust litigation at the federal
level, which gave rise to the breakup of AT&T 1n 1984

b the Federal Court system. And I just don't recall

at that time period, but just wanted to explore with
you. Attached to Mr. Scarbrough’s testimony was the
analysis of O&M expense, you know, which dealt with
previous periods escalated up. And, in fact, in the
MFRs, there are 1989 actuals and ’'90 projecticns, ancd
what have you, all the way through.

E Has there becen any thought -- and I'm trying

ite make sure that I understand O&M benchmark, which

you’re not specifically charged to test.fy to, but, ycu
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know, you‘re in the planning and projection business.
I'm wondering about the appropriateness, fc: instance,
regardless of who perpetrated an act -- whather it
would be, you know, the buck stops with the Chief
Executive Officer. Like with AT&T, back with DeButz
and Company.

How about the expenses associated with
however many employees that were required to testify,
prepare testimony, retrieve records, copy, do all of
those kinds of things, travel, per diem, that were
involved in that investigation which ultimately Gulf
plead to?

For purposes of doing an analysis, an O&4M
berichmark analysis of actual ‘89 expenses, come of
those were in 'B9. Were those removed so that you
could make a comparison of the actual elecctricity
generating side of Gulf and taking out those expenses
that were involved in that outside activity so that we
could get a 1989 making electricity and 1989

involvement with the grand jury?

WITNESS GILBERT: Let me see 1f 1 can set you

at ease. I've *hought of the same thing.
COMMISSIONER GUNTER: And ! understand
that’s, those don’t always match, Mr. Gilbert.

WITNESS GILBERT: Right.
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COMMISSIONER GUNTER: I want to make sure you
understand. They don‘t always match, because 1 ¥Xnow
that there were folks with Gulf -- because you al! have
got a ton of folks that are at least in the experience
1n the years I’ve been here, have been dedicated to
providing electric service to their customers. And In
no way any of my comments are intended to cast doubt on
those folks. I'm trying to just loock at deollars. And
I recognize a lot of those folks got their job done and
then worked long hours in doing this other piece. I
understand that.

WITNESS GILBERT: Right.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Because the electri
service was still provided and you all didn’t have a
big bump of people, and somchow all the work got done
and people got called to Atlanta, and what have you. I
understand that. But when I put -- purely, when I take
the personal side out and look at the dollars that were
involved, and there are two ways to look at that. Have
you all done that kind of analysis?

WITNESS GILBERT: We have locked at those
expenses. And I agree with you that the exempt
personnel that are paid on a salary basis, there 1s no
incremental expense there. There was an imposition on

their time. Certainly, no responsibilities were

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

21

22

23

24

25

671
removed from them. They still had the same job to do.
They had to work nights, weekends to make up the
difference.

on a lot of tlie travel expense assoclated
with witnesses in the grand jury investigation, those
are paid for by the U. S. Government. I mean, that'’s
part of their -- they house them if they have to stay
over, they pay their travel, they give them meal
expense, so forth and so on.

We did have some internal travel expense
associated with people visiting with our lawyers, and
so forth and so on. We did have some copying expense
associated with those type expenses. 1 can’‘t say any
of those were -- and when you look at the entire O&M
cost of Gulf Power Company -- were significant.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Well, let me ask you
this. Did you all have a, did Mr. Scarbrough, through
folks that work for him, did you ail have a plece of
correspondence that came down from Accounting that
said, "Hey, wait a minute. Everybody that spends any
time on this precject, charge your, on your time sheet,
charge your accecunt to No. 1235, so that we have a way
to capture all the time that has been spent on that,
regardless of whether it’s for, you know, for money

purposes or whatever." Did you all get one like that?
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Did everybody in the Company charge that number?

WITNESS GILBERT: No, sir, we did not do
that.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Wouldn’t that have been
advisable to have done that?

WITNESS GILBERT: 1Inh retrospect, Monday
morning quarterback, yes. We were actual -- in the
actual process, every month we thought it was going to
be over with, and it just drug on and on and on.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: It’s like my hurting
foot. I keep from going to the doctor, because 1 know
it’s going to be better tomorrow. But it’s not getting
any better.

WITNESS GILBERT: We did not capture the
labor hours, the direct l-bor hours, of the exempt or
nonexempt. We did capture some overtime for those that
were paid overtime and caused to work overtime in
copying some of the stuff. And we do Know about some
of the travel and copying expenses. 50 to those
extent, we can identify those expenses.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: All right, fine.

WITNESS GILBERT: Let me a2dd one other thing.
When we filed our filing in this ‘89 tax rule that we
just filed back in March, we subtracted those expenses

we know about out of that tax rule.
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COMMISSIONER GUNTER: All right. I'm beating
a dead horse. I have nothing further, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIRMAN WILSON: Redirect?
MR. STONE: Yes, please.
REDIRECT EXAMINATIOHN
BY MR®. STONE

Q Mr. Gilbert, to follow up just a moment on
what Commissioner Gunter was asking you, the travel and
copying that took place in 1989 related to the grand
jury, was any of that budgeted in 19897

A No.

Q Were any of the expenses of employee
activity, were they budgeted in 19897

A Would you repeat that guestion?

Q Were any of the expenses in employee activity
associated with those, helping with the grand jury and
things of that sort, were they budgeted in 19897

A Were the employee’s actual expenses for his
normal work routine budgeted?

Q Well, 1 realize chat their normal work
routines were budgeted. Did you budget extra for those
extra activities related to the grand jury?

A No.

Q Subseqguently, have you had to budget any of

those materials for those expenses in 19907
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A No. None that we haven’t removed from this
case. The only ones that were budgeted were some legal
activities and Arthur Andersen, which we’ve removed all
those from this case.

Q Did the Company have to hire any additional
personnel to perform the activities that related to the
Grand Jury?

A None that I'm aware of.

Q Basically then, Mr. Gilbert, is it true that
none of these activities have any affect on the 1990
budget which is the basis of the test year?

A That’s correct.

Q In addressing some of the things that changed
between the 1989 test year and the 19%%0 test year,
there were some additions to rats base early in 1989,
were there not?

A There were additions to --

MR. BURGESS: I'm going to have to object to
the guestion. He’s getting too leading. 1'm going to
have to object on the basis of it being a leading
question.

Q (By Mr. Stone) If there were additions to the
rate base in 1989, would the effects of l3-month
average rate base, would they be fully reflected in the

1989 test year?
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A That’s correct.
Q Would th.y or would they not?
A Rate base is cumulative as far as any

construction is concerned. So anything that was in
1989 would be in 1990.

Now, if you’re tzlking about variations,
variations to our plant in service for 1989 would not
carry forward into 1990 because we picked a new
starting pcint for the plant-in-service numbers.

Q Perhaps the question may be better addressed
to Mr. McMillan, but in terms of l3-month average rate
base, scme of those effects are delayed because of the
l13-month average, is that correct?

A That’s correct.

MR. BURGESE: 1'm going to have to object.
He’s leading the witness.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: That’s a very leading
guestion. You're going to have to rephrase that.

MR. STONE: 1’11 explore it with Mr. McMillan.

Q (By Mr. Stone) Mr. Gilbert, do you Know
whether the -- you mentioned that the individual
planning units do their own budgetings on a zero-based
or a trending of it, use different analyses, that it’s
not based on the reference, although they do budgeting,

is that correct?
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like the benchmark, only determines how much
documentation you’d get.

Q Those budget papers in the individual planning
units, have they been made available in this rate case?

A Primarily to Public Counsel. The Public
Counsel requested selec-ed work papers, and the Staff
has been provided all the B-4 documents that are the
justification documents.

MR. STONE: We have no further guestions.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Mr. Chairman, I have
one, just a clarification as a result of those closing
questions.

Mr. Gilbert, T understand that you’re not
responsible for Schedule C-21, at least you’'re not the

witness identified in the MFRs, but your information,

jwvhen you go for 1990, the test year, from your planning

activity there would have been a portion of that which
comes from your efforts, would they not?
WITNESS GILBERT: I'm not sure what C-21 1s.
COMMISSIONER GUNTER: C-2]1 is the detailead
changes and expenses when you‘re talking about O&M, and
you’re taking the prior year, which year ended 1989,
and then they‘ve got the 1990 test year. So when

you’re in 1989, you were budgeting forward for 1990, 1is
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that correct?

WITNESS GILBERT: That'’s correct, but this is
not year-end data. This is nine months actual, four
months, three months --

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Looking at the heading
up on the right-hand side, type of data shown.

WITNESS GILFERT: Right.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Projected test year
ended 1990.

WITNESS GILBERT: That's correct.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Prior year ended 1989.
I‘'m just looking at the MFRs and I‘m taking that at
face value. It said that the projected 1990 data shown
in Column 3, and I guess it’s the same, I'm just
looking at C-21, Page 4 of 7.

WITNESS GILBERT: Yes, sir, that’'s correct.
But in the negotiation of the MFRs, the prior year was
defined as nine months actual, three months projected
for O&M.

COMMISSIONER CUNTER: Let me jump over that.
But some of your information would have come from
there, is that right?

WITNESS GILEERT: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: 1In counsel’s statement

they asked you a question did you budget for any of the
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expenses in the Grand Jury investigation, and your
answer, of course, .as no, you didn’t have any way to
forecast that. But in the prior year, if 1I'm readinj
the heading on C-21 correctly, these are actual
expenses that were incurred by the Company in 1989, is
that correct?

WITNESS GILBERT: Through September.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Through September. So
the heading up here is incorrect?

WITNESS GILBERT: That’s correct. It was
defined as part of the MFR process.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Okay, fine. I'm not
taking exception to that. I’m just trying to
understand what the MFRs tell me, because it says ended
1989. It didn’t get down to the point that you're
getting at.

WITNESS GILBERT: We filed a --

COMMISSiCNER GUNTER: But the actual expenses
you incurred in 1989 for our evaluation, are those
expenses you incurred in 1989, whether they were
planned for in ’88 to happen in ‘89 or not, Is that
right?

WITNESS GILBER1: Essentially that‘s correct,
yes.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Okay.
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MR. PALECKI: Mr. Chairman, I have one further
guestion based on waat --
CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right.
REDIRECT CR2SS EXAMINATION71
BY MR. PALECKI:

Q Isn’t it true that as part of your own jaob
functions at Gulf you were required to divert time as a
result of the Grand Jury investigation?

A Are you asking me personally?

Q Personally.

A I have very little to do with that specific
investigation in ‘B89.

Q You had to back the numbers up, didn’t you?

A As part of this case 1 had the task of
searching our budget work papers to see if any of the
related activities were involved that was really not
part of the investigation completely. It was as a
result of this case.

Q Dc you have any doubt that employees at every
level of management at Gulf were diverted from their
normal, daily tasks as a result of the investigation?

A In 19897

Q Either in 1989 or at the time of the
investigation.

A I'm sure there were many employees that were
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diverted from their tasks. As I say, as far as I know,
no responsibilities w e removed from any employee. To
the extent we worked any overtime because of thart,
where it was paid overtime and incurred incremental
expenses, we have ajdusted that out of the ‘89 tax
savings rule filing. As far as exempt employees that
had to work overtime, we have to work overtime all the
time. We don’t get paid one dime for it. There was no
incremental expenses associated with that type of
employee.

MR. PALECKI: No further questions.

CHAIZMAN WILSON: All right. HNothing further?

MR. STONE: None with this witness.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: His exhibits have been
stipulated?

MR. STOKE: That is correct.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Thank you very much. You
may be excused.

(Witness Gilbert excused.)

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Call your next witness.

MR. STONE: Mr. Mark Bell. ‘Pause)

Mr. Chairman, I don’'t believe Mr. Bell was
here on Monday when the witnesses were sworn.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Raise your right hard,
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please.

(Witness Bell sworn.)

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Thank you. Go ahead.

MARK R. BELL
was called as a witness on behalf of Gulf Power Company
and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. STONE:

Q Would you please state your name, your
employer, and your business address for the record?

A My name is Mark R. Bell. I am a partner with
Arthur Andersen. My address is 133 Peachtree Street,
Atlanta, Georgia.

Q Are you the same Mark R. Bell that has
prefiled direct testimony in Docket No. 891345 dated
December 15, 19897

A Yes, I am.

Q Mr. Bell, do you have any changes or
corrections to your testimony?

A No, I do not.

Q So if I were to ask you the guestions
contained in your prefiled direct test.mony, your
responses, would they be the same?

A Yes, they would.

MR. STONE: Mr. Chairman, I would ask that Mr.
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Bell’s testimony be inserted into the record as though

read.

CH*.IRMAN WILSON: Without objection, it will
be so inserted into the record.

MR. STONEF: Mr. Bell‘s exhibits have been
previously identified as stipulated.

(Exhibits 46, 47 and 48 previously stipulated

into the record.)
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Direct Testimony of
Mark R. Bell
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Q. Would you please state your name, business address,
and occupation?

A. My name (s Mark R. Bell. My oDusiness a22réss
reachtree Street,; N.E., Atlanta, Georgia, :73.12,
am a partner 1n the account:ng firm Artndr A-ferge-

Company.

Q. Would you please state your educational and
professional background?

A. I Joined Arthur Andersen & Co. wn 1967 fcllzwin:
graduation from St. Louls University with a Bacr-e.
2f Science degree in Accounting. I am a
Public Accountant in the states of Ceocrg:a,
California, and Missouri, and I am a mempber 3f =re

American Institute of Cert:f:ed Publ:c Accou. . tar

[AICPA).

Q. Would you briefly describe the work of Arthur
Andersen & Co.?

A, The firm has approx:imately 160 cffices, ~f whn, C*
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about one-ha.f are in the UJnited States and -re 2trer
half in other parts of the weorld., We worw with 3. .

types of businesses, both regulated and nonregu.ated,.

What is the nature of the work you have performed at
Arthur Andersen & J0.7

While I have had experience :n a numcer zf _rndistr.es,
a significant portion of my career has been devoted

to requlated industries, :including electric uti..t.es,
water and sewer, gas and telephone compan.ecs.

I have conducted and supervised :.ndependen:
audits of the financial statements of ounl.c . til.%.esg
and have supervised work in connection w«~ith thre
i1ssuance of securities of these compan.es. I orave
also assisted in numerous rate filings on 3 wide
range of topics before vari.ous state regu_.atory

bodies. My experience before the Florica Pupl:.c

—
ey
Lo 0]
o
8
]
=

Service Commission includes testifying .n Gu

Company's last two retail rate hear.ngs on Ty
independent review of the Company's firnanci | fore-

casting system. Consequently, [ am familiar wizth tne
Company's forecasting technigues and L(ts planniag and

control systems.

What are your present responsibllities at
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Arthur Andersen & Co.?

Currently, I am partner-in-charge c¢f the aud:.:
division responsible for our regulated :ndustries
practice in the Atlanta office, which serves ag +tre
concentration office for our regulatecd i1ndustrcy
services in the southeastern United States. In
addition, 1 serve as the engagement partner tor Su.f
Power Company and several other eleciric ut...%.es

and telephone companies,

What is the purpose of your testimony?

The purpose of my testimony s to present the res..:
of my independent review of the financ:a! forecast:.r
system used by the Company, :nc.uding my rev.ew =!
the accuracy with which the system forecasts the -es
period financial results, the overall reascrable-ess
of the assumptions made by the Company -“c Zeve_or

those results, ard the consistency of the data .sed

]

=

in applying those assumptions throughout the forecas:,

Do you have an exhibit which accomparies your
testimony?
Yes.

Counsel: We ask that Mr. Bell's Exhib.t,

comprised of 3 Schedules, be
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marked for i1dent:f:cat.on as

Exhibits ¥ upa- 1),

Were all of the schedules in this exhibit prepared
under your supervision?
Yes. Each schedu'e of this exhibit was preparec

under my direction and supervision.

Please describe your review of the financial forecast
made by the Company for purposes of this proceeding.
The review was made under my direct superv.si10n anc
consisted of two parts. The first part was a revi.ew
of the Company's financial forecasting system .tsel.f;
the second part was a review of tne specific fcrecasrs
of the 1990 test period as summarized :.n

Mr. McMillan's Schedules 2 and 3.

Do you have a schedule which shows an overview of the
financial forecasting process?

Yes. My Schedule ] illustrates, :in summary (2rm, the
Company's process for preparing forecasts. Th:is
system is described in detail by Company wWitnesses
Scarbrough, Parsons, Howell, Jordan, Lee, Kilgore,
Bowers, Gilbert and McMillan. As the schedule

1llustrates, input is developed by various
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departments whose personnel are qua.:f:ed .n spec:.:

areas sucn as economic fOfEC&S'.“.ﬂC}, cperat.ans,
engineering, accountino, and finance. Th.s .-put
reflects the Corporate Business Plan as approved oy
the Company's top management as well as the key
assumptions that are approved for consistent
application throughout the forecast. The Corpcrate
Planning Department has primary responsit:. .ty far
collecting data to be used 'n the forecast from the
appropriate source departments, commun.cat.ng tne
forecast gquidelines tc those source depa-tments,
validating internal consistency of data, produic.ing

the financial model using the scurce budsets and

obtaining appropriate management rev.ew and approva..

The Budget Committee reviews the fcrecas: on 3
planning unit level both before and afte: tre
planning unit budget is allocated to FERT account
numbers. The final approved forecast 1s an :npu® *°

the Company's responsibility report:ng system, wh.cC*k
P

provides monthly and gquarterly reports showing act.a.

results compared to the forecast, and which

management uses to control and monitor the var.ous

departments of the Company.

Have there been any significant changes or enhance-
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ments to the financial forecasting sysiem since your
review in connection with the Company's 1934 reta.’
rate case, Docket No. B400B6-EI?

Yes, The Company has made several sign:f.cant

enhancements to 1ts financi1al forecast.ng process

Please describe those enhancements.
First, the Company has implemented computer
applications which provide interfaces ol :ne surtpur
of the construction budget model and misce..anec.s
model calculations to the f:nancial model.
Previously, these 1tems were manua.ly 1nterfaced.

Second, the Company has adopted the Ut:il.ny
Fuel Inventory Model (UFIM) develiopecd by tne flectr.cC
Power Research Institute {(EPRI} to assist .n tre
determination of a strategic coal :nventory pol:~Yy
This model was designec to "strixe a balance” ret~eer
the cost of holding fuel and the expected cost °f
running out of fuel.

Third, the Company has enhanced the lo~g-term
customer, energy, and demand forecasting
met hodologies by adopting various econometric moce.s
such as the REGIS, COMMEND and HELM models discussed
in Mr. Kilgore's testimony.

Finally, .he Company i:as made severa) changes
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in 1ts O & M budget process related to ([) the
reference levels used by tne planning unics oo
preparing their budgets, (2) the :nformat:on uasec
*he O & M Budget Rev:ew Committee, and (3| rtre

budgetinrg of the personnel complerent.

Can you describe these changes to the Company's 0 & M

budget process in further detail?

Yegs., First, the Company has refined 1ts crocecu.ures

for establishing the reference levels used by each

rlanning unit to budget O & M expenses. The .9%9%C

reference level i1s defined as the (989 bucdge: _.ess

{1) nonrecurring items, (2) corporate control.led
items, and (3) salaries for positions which were

budgeted in 1989 but had not been added to the

ik

complement or which were budgered :n [38% our rad
been approved for filling for (2 months. Each
planning unit must provide detailed justificat:on

all expenses budgated ir excess of the reference

level and this justification 15 closely scrur.n:ized

by Corporate Planning, the O & M Review Committee,
and the Budget Committee. The reference leve. .s
discussed in further detail :n Mr. G:lbert's
testimony.

Second, Corporate Planning has added a ne-
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pJddget to actual comparison report to the nfcrmat.:
provided -o the O & M Review Committee for use .n
review of the O & M budget, Th.s report prov.ces 3
three-year historical analysis of budget to act.a.
variations by FERC account for each planning 2n.t.
The O &§ M Review Committee carefully reviews a..
budget requests compared to prior years' history,
obtain the Committee's approval of budget reguests,
each planning unit must be able to expla:n and
support any budget regquests which appear .nosua. o°
light of prior year budget to actua. varianc’s,
Finally, the Company has estabpl:i:sned a
met hodc logy teo adjust the forecast for a personne.
"hirino lag." As discussed in Mr. G.lpert's
testimony, this adiustment deducts from the f2recas:
the es-imated salaries assoc:ated Wit vacanc.es
caused by normal turnover. I will discuss thi.s

adjustment further later i(n my cest.mony.

das the Company implemented any of the
recommendations you made in your testimony in the
Company's 1984 retail rate case relating toc your
review of the Company's 1984 forecast?

Yes. I noted that several of my previous

recommendations were i1mplemented. Among them were

w
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financia! model.

The Company has automated the

1Ls revenue subsystem and :ts

The Company has developed complete,

detailed, user-oriented system

documentation for the financ.a.

093

mode ] .

: The Corporate Planning Depar:men® now

performs detailed reviews of

eacr

planning unit budget. Corporate

Planning's reviews include

reasorn-

ableness checks of amounts budge-ed

using the budget assumptions approved

management. The planning un:its are

required to prov.de detaliled

tion for any areas that are budgered

increases other than those due

inflation.

ol o,

In your review of the Company's forecasting process,

did you note any further improvements that could be

made?

Yes. I noted one area where further

system could be made., I considered th:is

of the forecast,

and 1t does not mod:ify

improvement

e

1345-2;

M, R. Be.!

Page 9
interface

Lne

In my review

my

overal.




Pt

~d

Jocket Ng. 59.345-£7
Witness: M. R, Be.
i

conclusions on che forecastinag system,

tion 1s that the Company should cont:nve *o as*amate

the miscellaneous forecast calculat:icns and uLt:...ze re
interface capabilities for the financ:al model. T~%.s
would reduce the risk of clerical or #ata inpat errars

and expedite the gen:ration of the f:nancial mode..

Please describe the scope of your review of the
financiai forecasting system.

I utilized a work program desi.gned to eval_.are --g
forecasting system in light of the relevart

professional standards. My review :ndicated thar rrg

rn

rm
m
0
"
3]
[+1)
1
%

Company has a forecasting system which 1s e
which meets all of the relevant profess.cna. sta~~ar-s

for such a system,

What "relevant professional standards”™ d:i11 you use in
evaluating the Company's financial forecasting system?
I evaluated the Company's financial forecast:ng systerw
against the professional standards outl:ned .n rre

American Institute of Certified Public Accountarn‘s
(AICPA) "Guide For Prospect:ive Financial Statements.”
This official pronouncement of the AICPA estatlishes

the broad principles and requirements that 5overn "‘-e

preparation of financial forecasts.
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The AICPA gqguidelines provide a comprehens:ve
statement relating to the preparat'on of forecasts a~:
as such, can be used to determine that a forecast .s
prepared in a reasonable and prudent manner The
statement establishes a set of criter:a aga.rst ~h.ch a
forecasting system can be evaluated., The i1mplementa-

tion of the guidelines was intended to lead to
increased confidence on the part of users that due Care
15 exercised in the preparation of forecasts. Tre ..
spec:fic guidelines in this statement are :nc..ded .~

my Schedule No. 2.

Are these the same standards you used toc evaluate the
Company's financial forecast in its 1984 reta:! rate
case?

No, not exactly. The AICPA's "Gu:de for Prospect.ve
Financ:al Statements,” which was :ssued :n _%386,
established new standards for the preparat.on of
financial forecasts. The new guidel:ines are
essentially the same as those a.pplicable at tne ' .me <I
the 1984 retail rate case excep: an add.t:i:onal stanca:’®
has been added -- "Financial forecasts should te
prepared in good faith." This new standard requ:.res
that forecasts be prepared without undue optimism °or

pessimism and that care be exercised to ensure "-at
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forecasts are not misleading to third-party users, The

Jse of good faith has always been :mpl:icit .5 =-e
guidelines for the preparation of financ:al forecasts,
The new guidelines simply establ:i:sh good fa:=n as 3

separate explicit standard.

Please summarize the procedures utilized i1n your review
of the Company's financial forecasting system.

I employed the following procedures .n rev._.ew:ing tne

(1]

financial forecasting system. First, I <Zeve_cgec a~

overall understanding of the Company's activ:it.ées

[T
L
L

which, when combined, comprise .ts fcregcast.nz3
I also followed flow of data from the originat. 3
departments through the forecasti:ng system toQ tre [ _-3]
preparation of Lhe forecast .-se.f.
undertaken to complete my understanc:nrg of -ne
processes used by the organ.zational uJnits witnin "ne
Company in the preparatior. of the financial forecas®,
The second step of my review ccnsisted ci tre
identification and review of -he specific proceZures
followed by the Company perscnnel .n nrepar:ing tne
forecast. The purpose of this step was to ver:fy trnat
adequate procedures were .n place to ensure the
accuracy and completeness of the forecast .f trnose

procedures were followed.
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Finally, certain compl.ance tests w~ere perfzrmed,
and certain documentation and reports ~ere rev._ewed =7
verify that the system was .n fact operating as
designed, This work also :ncluded ensdring -ne

internal consisterncy of data usec :rn -he fsrecast,

Please describe your review of the specific 1990
forecast.
Ir. addition to the work on the forecast.ng SyYSLET w7 . C0°

T just described, the clerical accuracy of :re

i

financial model input ané output was tested on a sI-Ce
basis. This included recalculat:.ng many of =re
computations made by the model. The :nput daw3 .35
referenced to the appropriate source <ocuments ani =~z:
traced through the model processing .nto the forecas-
output, which i1s summarized o°n Schedules 2 and !

Mr, McMillan's testimony.

The key assumptions approved Ly management se-
forth 1n MFR F-17 were ver:fled to be these acm.a..,
used in the forecaot, Further, the forecast was
reviewed for the apprcpriate :nterrelat:cnsh.ps of =-e
data generated and for the conformity with proper rate
making procedures and generally accepted accounting

principles.
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During your review, did you note any changes or
adjustments which should be reflected i1n the 1790

forecast for purposes of this proceeding?

Yes, I noted several adjustments wWhich were .den-.f.ez

either oy Company personnel or my pe:scnrel. Most of

these adjustments were mace on Schedules 6 and §

included in Mr. McMillan's testimony. These genera..y

relate to the following areas:

{(l) certain administrat.:ve and genera. expe~ses
related to the IRS and Grand Jury :nvest.3ations

(2) certain utility plant and related accuimu.ated
depreciation items also related tg the [FS
invest:gation; and

i3) other miscellaneous 1tems exc.ucded from rne-
operating income Or rate base Zue to reg._.3t ot
precedents.

Adjustments were not made, however f£3r the fo..owinzZ

items:
(1) certain revenues were not forecasted;

(2) changes in the forecast wi:ll! be necessary o

reflect adjustments to be made related to certa.n

exceptions noted in the recent Federal Energy

Requlatory Commission (FERC) aud:yt.

Please discuss the revenues which the Company did

-
Pl

ct
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forecast.

The Company did not forecast any economy enerc. saies.
This treatment is coasistent with prior forecasts and
was discussed in the Company's 1984 reta:l rate case,
Docket No. B40086-EI. Although I recognize -hat the
large numbe: of variables involved in economy energy
transactions make these revenues very difficulr to
forecast, I continue to believe they shoulZd te :nc.uded
in the forecast. However, s'nce 80 percent cf econary
energy sales profics are credited to retail ratepayers
through the fuel adjustment clause, and -“he rema.n:ng

20 percent is retained by the Company's stoceho.ders .=

compliance with Commission Order no. 12923, there .5 -0

consequential effect on the proposed retai. rate
increase resulting from the omission of these s5a_es

from the forecast.

Please describe the adjustments that will be made
related to the FERC audit.

Certain FERC findings have been recorced ty tne Company
during 1989 and are properly reflected .:n the 13990
forecast. Other audit findings are current.y bSei.ng
resolved and the related effects on the financ:al
statements and thus, the 1990 forecast, have not been

determined at this time. ASs discussed 1n Mr. McM:i._.an’
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testimony, *he Company will provide to tne Comriss:icon
any adjustments to the forecast which resu.t upon f.ra.

resolution of the FERC audit :ssues.

Mr. Bell, you mentioned other adjustments related to
the Grand Jury and IRS investigations which were
reflected in the forecast and which are included on
Schedules 6 and 8 in Mr. McMillan's testimony? Did you
review these adjustments?

Yes. Given the concerns about the Company's accoun%t.~g3
system and controls and the potential impact crn =he
forecast related to the recent IRS and Granc J.ry
investigations, I performed detailed reviews of
portions of the forecast related to those areas .7 =re
company which could be affected. Speci:fically,
reviewed the forecasted costs asscocf.ated with
marketing, public relations, and lega. expernses.

also reviewed the adjustments to test pericd operas.-a
income related to legal fees and to test per.cd rate
base related to charges for transfocrmers and the.r

repair.

During your review of these specific areas, did
anything come to your attention that causes you to

believe that the 1990 financial forecast specifically
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includes costs related to the aileged irreqularities
discussed in the Company's plea agreement with the
United States Government, or legel fees forecasted as a
result of activities associated with the Grand Jury or
IRS investigations?

No. I specifically reviewed the 1990 cudge® suppor:e
for various marketing and public relat:ons 3c-:v.t.es
and compared -he 1990 budget to the -orrespondi-g .3%e9

budget. I noted that certain costs, such as rroge ¢ .-

m
3
i
L
(¥
4]
k

retainers for certain odts-de services, wer
in the 1389 budget but were specif:cally exc..ded .-
1990. In addition, I reviewed the O & M amocunts
budgeted for legal fees, i1ncluding those amounts
allocated to Gulf by Southern Company Serv.ces,

noted the budgeted costs 1ncluded amounts re.atecd <--

[X]

the IRS and Grand Jury :nvestigat:ons, These aro.n-

> -
nesme

were specifically excluded f{rom Net Operat.n

1]

(NOI) as an adjustment inc.uded in Mr. McM:.lar's
Schedule 8, Although I cannot give atsol.te ass.rance
that no costs related to any prior .rregu.ar act.v.2.@&s
are budgeted in 1990, I did not note any s ch oudgeted
costs in my review which were not specifical!ly exc..de:
from NOI by the Company.

1 also reviewed the Company's adjustment -0 rate

base related to transformers and other cCosts Whicnh Were
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determined to be improperly cap.tal.zed due "2 i(lleza.
activities, Aga:n, although I Cannot say wl1th aoso..te
assurance that all such charges nave been (dent:fiec
and properly removed from rate base, I bel..eve tne
Company has made a good faith eflfort to idenz iy suice

items and to properly adjust the forecast.

Mr. Bell, did you have any additional findings which
would affect the 1990 forecast used in this proceeding?
Yes. I noted that the hiting lag adjustment made CYy
the Company in its O & M forecast does not necessar:.y
reflect the Company's hiring plans and may res..t 1~ af
overstatement of O & M expenses :n the forecas:,

However, I also noted that the Company's forecas:t f-or

(8]
iT

- E

union salaries was understated. The effe
understating these wages would essentially 2ffsez "=e

effect of understating the hiring lag.

During the course of your review, did you note any
variances between the assumptions used in the forecast
and conditions as they subsequently developed?

Yes. I noted three areas where cond:t:ons charged
petween the time the forecast was prepared and tne cate
of my review. Iu each case, the forecast was cased on

the best iaformation available at the time, but
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conditions o'“side the control of the
subseguently developed in a manner d:f

ref lected 1n the forecast,

First, the forecast was prepared

salary increase of 1 percent for urion

Subsequent to the forecast preparat.on,

contract was renegot:ated and an actua
increase of 3.7 percent was determ:ined
discugsed previously in my testimony,

related to union wages are understated

1990 forecast. In addition, severa. .

were upgraded which will also resu.t
salaries expense which was not forecas
Second, the Company used an eft:.m
inflation rate {(as measured by :tre CPI
consumers) of 4.4 percent i1n the 1920
Subsequently, some economists have ra:
tions of the 1990 increase in the CPI
percent. Although the :inflat:on rate
Company is certainly not unreascnab.e,

in fact, understate those expenses aff

Serent, § gom oolbar

481ng an #

cersonne.

1l base sa;

g% . watasd

.k X
tne UnLIOR

ar,

s Thus, as

2 & M experses

thshe Company's

ekl DOSLE

noadds e

ted.

ated 4949

sed e :
o as k.gt

assomed oy

ected by tne

Finally, two changes have occur:ed subsegue:t t.

the preparation of the forecast related to i1tems

affect the Company's cap.tal structure

of capital. First, 1t has been determ:

» ANQ TNJUS
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$3 million capital contribution £rom tne Soutrer-

Company fo.ecasted for Deremrcer, .989, w:l!

received. Second, a deferred tax l:abirl.ty

tax liabilities, At the time the forecast
prepared, the Company did not be..eve the ¢
would be payable in 1989. The total effect

two changes (s a slight (ncrease .n revenue

Mr. Bell, does the 1990 forzcast represent
plans of the Company for that year?
Yes, it does, The 1990 forecast recomes =i

1990.

Are the people responsible for prepar:ing th
also held accountable for achieving it?

Yes. The final approved budget becomes ~re

the Responsibility Reporting System. _he rud

prepared at the section or locat.on .eve. &V

appropriate managers and sJdperv.scrs. Thes
are combined into departmental budgets, an’
departmental budgets are compined .nto p.an

budgets. These hudgets are then forwardec

functional Vice Presidents pefor2 being reviewec D}

Budget Tommittee ard Pres:dent. The Respon

TU4
B8 1345-8"
M, R, Rel:
Page /7

man e
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regias senhent

the acrua.
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Reporting System follows the same ..ne c©f repcr-:.-g3.

The Recponsibility Reporting System senerites
monthly budget-to-actual comparisons at the sectinn

location level. Summary reports are prepared =0 a

monthly basis for review by higher levels witr:n the

Company. At the end of each gquarter, reports are
prepared at the planning unit level which prov.Ze a
detailed explanation for budget variances dJreater

S percent and $1,000. 1In addition, a pos:t:ve Stat

must be made as to whether or not it .8 est.mated t-n

the budget w:.1ll be achieved by the end of the year,

the budget cannot be achieved by the end of the cear

then approval must be obta:red at the Vice Pres;Zer

and Budget Committee levels, If the pudget wvar._anc

LYo ]

not approvecd, then the planning unit must take -re

necessary steps to come within the budget for tre

Have you verified that the Responsibility Report:ng
System you have just described is operating as
designed?

Yes. On a test basis, I have verified oy exsminac®
of supporting evidence that the Responsibliity

Reporting System is operating as described acove.

Mr. Bell, what conclusions have you drawn from your

Lo T B

emer- -

AT

»on
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review of the Compa.y's financial forecasting system
and the 1990 forecast?

In my opinion, the financial forecasting system and tne
procedures employed in the preparation of the
forecasted data are 1n compliance with the gu:delines
in the American Institute of Certif:ed Publ:ic
Accountants' "Guide for Prospective Financ.al
Statements."

My review indicated that the systems and
procedures used by the Company are 1n piace and are
operating effectively. The data flow .5 subject to
validation, and the forecast 1ncludes all .mporzant
data. There is adeguate partic:ipation, review, and
approval by management,

The forecasted data on Schecdules 1 and 3 of
Mr. McMillan's exhibit 18 an accurate simu.ation 2f t-e
financial cesults of the underlying assumptinrns and
those assumptions provide a reasonable basi:s for tne
forecast. If these assumptions prove true, =he 1980
forecasted test period results should become the act.a.
financial results of the Company except for the effect
of the differences discussed earlier .n my testimony.

Although the key assumpt:ons developed and
approved by management represent future events not

susceptible to verification at the time the forecast
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was prepared, they were developed 1n good faith .n a
reasonable and »rudent manner and were crotaired from

reliable sources.

Mr. Bell, you stated that the 1990 forecast :s based
upon assumptions not susceptible to present verifica-
tion. How can the Commission be assured that the ure
of the forecast in this rate proceeding is fair to the
Company's customers?

The testimony of several Company witnesses descr.res .-
detail how the flnancial forecasting system worxs an2
the accuracy with which i1t projects actual resu)
have previously concluded that this system ~an be rel.ed
upen to develop forecasts in a reasonable and prident
manner which represent the most probable f.nanc.al
result of the forecast test year. My rev.ew confirms
t~at management has a well-developed system with an
arility to accurately forecast the cost of service,

In addition, an analysis of the components of the
forecast revenue requirements will show that :he
conponents which affect the level of base rates are no-
susceptible of misestimation to any great degree and
the Company has historically forecasted these
components with great accuracy.

Please explain.
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The Commission has adopted a fue. adjustment I2s:¢

-

&y of

e

recovery mechanism which provides for the recov
fuel! cost. The Commission ha: establ:shed a s:m:.lar
mechanism for the recovery of certairn conservat.on
program expend:itures. Therefore, these costs nave no
impact on the proposed adjustments to base rates ang
can be eliminated from further analysis.

What rema:ns to affect base rates .8 other
operating expenses, return, taxes on retirn, ani trne
marginal revenuve from variation$s between forecasts an-
actual base rate revenues. Recent history Srcws o nat
variation between forecast and actual! amcunts 3% tnese
items has been minimal in relation to tota. reven.e

regquirements applicable to base rates.

What is the basis for this conclusion?

I have analyzed the compar:sons cf forecast 3 act.a.
amounts for the years 1985, 1986, 1987 and .9Bb =5
shown on Schedule 3 of my exhibit. My arna.ys.s
excludes fuel and conservation cliause revenues and
energy revenues ass-ciated with unit power -nd otner
off-system sales agreements which are treated as
nonjurisdictional by this Commiss:ion. I app..ed :the

percentage variance for thes? years to the actsa. nase

rate revenues for rhose years .n order to eva_._.ate -ne
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significance of these var:ances .n terms of tora. tase
rate revenue, The .mpact of rhese var.ances .s
min.mal, as shown by my analys:s.

Most of the operating expense .tems are re.at.ve,
fixed i1n nature, and when cconsidered 1 ..3ht ~f rrmowr
cost levels in prior years, their cost can be eas:..;
frrecast, particularly in the short ruin. Therefore,
the cost of operations applicable to base rates .5 -o°

susceptible to misestimation to any great Jegree, I..a-

w

the level of sophistication cf the Caompary
forecasting process.

In addition, an integra. part of the fzorecas: . =2
system described earlier in my test:mony 15 the
Company's Responsibility Reporting System., Tr.s
Responsibility Report:ng System suppeorts Lhe Corparn)y
financial planning and contrcl process and ennances
ability of management to acnieve forecast res.. ¢
insofar as economic events, activities, and cnsts ire
controllable., Por example, managemen: requires
specific plans of action to correct .nter.m
budget-to-actual deviations tc the extent expendit_res

are controullable.

why do your calculations on Schedule 3 not include

amounts for variances between forzcast and actual
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return on common equity, income taxes, and fuel and
interchange costs?

The appropriate return on common equ:ty for the tes

-
&

period is a matter that will be determined by decis:on

of the Commission. Income taxes are a f_nct.on of
return on equity capital. Hence, the Jistorical

forecast var:ation range 1s not relevant. Fue. arg

interchange costs are recovered through the [gye. and

purchased power recovery clause as [ prev.ous.V

discussed.

Please summarize your testimony.

Based upon the review described earlier .n my
testimony, in my opinion, the financia. fgrecast:ng
system used by the Company conforms with reievant

professional standards, is adequate for .ts purpose

=

complete and logirally founded, and can bte re.;ed .po-

to produce consistent, reliable results.

With only the immater:a. differences d.scussed

earlier in my testimony, the 1990 forecast represents

an accurate simulation of the financial resu.ts wwht

[

-k

should occur if tha key assumptions prove trde. wWhi

the key assumptions represent future events not
susceptible to present verification, they were

developed in good faith in a reasonanle and crudent




manner. In my opinion, the use of a 19390 “:or

test period is appropriate for sett:ng rates,

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes, 1t does,
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Q (By Mr. Stone) Mr. Bell, do you have a

summary of your testimony?

A Yes, 1 do.
Q Please proceed.
A My testimony addresses »our independent review

of the Company’s financial forecasting system and the
specific review of the Company’s 1990 financial
forecast used in the rate case. My review included
examination of the financial forecasting system against
the professional standards outlined in the American
Institute of Certified Public Accounts’ Guide for
Prospective Financial Statements. It also included
testing the accuracy with which the system forecast,
the test period financial results, the overall
reasonableness of the assumptions made tc develop the
results and the consistency of the data used in
applying these assumptions.

Based on my review, I have concluded that the
Company‘s financial forecasting system conforms with
the official guidelines established by the AICPA,
provides a well-documented audit trail, and is ideguate
for its intended purpose.

I have also concluced that the 1930 financial
forecast was prepared in good faith and, with

differences noted in my direct testimony, reflects the
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actual results that would occur if the assumptions
proved true.

In summary, the Company’s financial
forecasting syste. conforms with relevant professional
standards, is adequate for its purpose, is complete and
logically founded, and can be relied on to produce
consistent, reliable results.

In addition, the 1990 forecast represents an
accurate simulation of the financial results which
should occur if the key assumptions prove true. While
the key assunptions represent futu-e events ot
susceptible to the present verification, they were
developed in good faith in a reasonable and prudent
manner, and that is my summary.

MR. STONE: Tender Mr. Bell for cross
examination.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Let me ask Counsel a
guestion. In trying to make sure to get the issues
that Mr. Bell is responsible for, are those listed
correctly? For instance, is Mr. Bell going to testify
on the lobbying expenses, the nonrecurring
out-of-period expenses? Because his name is not listed
back in the text on those issues, but he’s got issues
that don‘t appear to -- maybe I‘m just not capable of

reading hic testimony.
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MR. STONE: Mr. Gunter, I think I can explain
that. When we were preparing the prehearing statements
and the resulting Prehearing Order, the Audit Report
had rot been f'ialized. And at the final Prehearing
Conference it was agreed that some of *he witnesses
would be presenting supplemental testimony on audit
issues.

The way we identified that was to take a
listing that had been provided to us by the Staff,6 we
went cdown and it had identified which issues they
thought the audit points related to. And we listed our
witnesses that would be addressing those audit points.
In sone respects their testimony -- or what they would
be assisting the Commission with in regards to those
issues, would be on aspects of those issues and not
really supporting the issue 1itself,

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Sco the rate of return
issue, Issue 38, that has to do with mismanagement,
that issue he’s going to talk about from a budgeting
standpoint? Is that how these are fitting together?
I'm trying to understand how the witnesses are going to
address each issue because 1 want to make sure every
188ue is covered by the witness. Do you understand
what I'm saying?

MR. STONE: I do.

FIORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSIWN
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COMMISSIONER GUNTER: 1 just got a litile
lost.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Because of the timing of
the Staff Audit, the out-briefing with respect to the
prehearing, we, in fact, continued the prehearing to
identify if, one, were there any additional issues as a
result of that audit. It ended up not being because a
large number of the -- for lack ol a better wvord --
"discrepancies," if you will, or disagreements, could
be rolled into Issue 38 and then certain other issues.
And it was my ruling that, where necessary, . dditional
testimony addressing specifically the audit
discrepancies, disagreements, whatever, would be
allowed toc try to cover that.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: O©Okay. So that would
help ¢n out-of-period nonrecurring expenses, lobbying
and the management gquestion on rate of return, is that
right? Is that the way I‘m understanding this now?

MR. STONE: Yes, sir.

MR. HOLLAND: Let me acd one thing, thouqgh,
and one of the additional reasons that Mr. Bell is
listed on Issue 38, is that he was involved in the
audit process throughout the period of the various
investigations and, in fact, participated to some

extent and could address guestions relative to
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management and how they handled the investigation.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Okay. I just needed to
understand that, Mr. Bell. 1 apologize.

WITNESS BELL: That’‘s fine.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: 1% was sort of
procedural before we got into at any point that I might
want to inquire.

CROSS ©“XAMINATION
BY MR. BURGESS:
Q Mr. Bell, in some areas does Gulf employ a

zero-based budgeting process?

A In some areas they do, yes.
Q And in other areas do they trend forward
previously-

budgeted expenses?

A In some areas they do, that’s correct.

Q In those areas where they zero-base budget, I
want to ask a couple of questions, specifically, with
regard to those.

Did you go back, or did you actually explore
the reasonableness of the cost levels assoclated with
the programs that were being built up 1n the zero-base
process?

A In those arszas that we looked at -- and I

need to call your attention tc the fact that we did
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look at every area we did attest of the Company’s
systems, -- in those that we did we looked at, you
know, the reasonableness of what was developed, of
course.

Q When you say you looked at some areas and not
others, so there would be some areas in which the
Company employed a zero-base system, and you locked at
what you considered to be a sample that would give you
what you needed in order to determine whether the
process was a reasonable one, is that correct?

A We looked at a sample that really developed a
level of comfort that the system worked as described,
and then, you know, we worked from that level or
comfort.

Q Okay. Would I be correct to say that you
really couldn’t attest to the reascnableness of the
numbers budgeted under the zero-base process, unlecs
you were able to explore and examine the reasonableness
of each of the programs that were being built up under
the zero-base process?

A Well, I don’t think that’s entirely true
because I think, you know, when we undertake our work,
we understand the business that the company is in and,
of course, the programs are described in the budgeting

process. And so I think we have several, what I would
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718
call reference points, to check on. So I don‘t believe
that’s entirely true. I think we do have a reasonable
basis to determine whether those kind of programs make
sense in light of the kind of business that the company
is in.
Q Okay. Addreseing specifically those areas

that were budgeted on a zero-basis, or on a zero-base

that you didn’t loock at specifically.

A Right.

Q Could I make the -- could I reasonably make

the statement that you cannot attest to the
reasonableness of the level of those particular areas?

A I don‘t believe s0 because, you know, we
conducted an audit process, you know, a "audit process"”
on the Company'’s forecast. We got comfortable with the
Company’s systemz and procedures and the integrity of
that process to develop a s''stem. We tested that, so
we have a high level of confidence that we can say
that, you know, the budgeting process was done in a
reasonable manner, and it‘’s appropriate for the purpose
for which it is being used. So I think we have
developed a high enough confidence level in our work to
be satisfied that the budgeted does produce a
reasonable result.

Q Well, on those areas that are zero-base

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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budgeted, and that you did examine the specific
programs to determine the reasonableness of the levels
budgeted, what did you use to examine the
reasonableness of those programs?

A What we do is in a particular program we look
at -- you know, we go through the form where those
progracs are developed, we view what those programs
are, and, you know, Lhat they make sense in light of
the business that the Company’s in. And then, you
kncw, you make sure that the cost meets what I call the
reascnable and prudent standard test.

Q And how do you do that?

A Well, I mean there are people that actually
undertake, you know, the work on the review,, you know,
our professionals that are experienced in working 1in
public utilities and understand the business they are
in. If there is guestions about it, you know, we go
back to the individuals who develop the budget and say,
"Okay, what is this for, what does this program do?
What kind of suppcrt do you have for these costs?"

Q When you say the people that actually

undertake the review, you’'re talking about your

auditors?
A Arthur Andersen people, that'’s correct.
Q And they examine specific program costrc for

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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A Right.

Q What do they do? What do they test it
against? 1Is taere anything other than -- excuse me.

You indicated that they have a certain amount
of experience, if I can characterize it as such in this
area. And so, therefore, that experience enables them
to perform certain reasonableness tests. Is there
anything beyond erperience? 1I1s there any --

A Oh, absolutely. If there is, for example, 1if
a cost is just -- I mean, if a projected cost doesn’t
make sense, or it’s not completely understood, then we
go back to the individual who develops the information
and say, "Well, what is this for, how did you get tou
this cost, does this make sense?"

Q So then you go back to the individual in Gulf
Power Company --

A At Gulf Power.

Q -- who made the cost projection. And involve
yourself in some type of interview where you examlne

the reasonableness?

A Exactly, and look at whatever support that
individual would have for those costs.

Q So, then what you have to do to determine the

reasonableness of the program-by-program buildup on the
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zero-based budgeting, is involve yourself .in an
exchange with the individuals who actually estimated
the cost for particular programs?

A That would be correct.

Q And then would I understand ccrrect.y, that
the ability of a particular individual to accurately
estimate the cost of a future program would bear on the
reasonableness of the estimate. of the estimated costs?

A Well, the ability and whatever support there
may be, whether there are, you know, potential
contracts or whatever.

Q Well, then if that is a factor in determining
the reasonableness of the total buildup or the
zero-base, wouldn‘t it be true that i1n the areas that
you didn’t deal with the individuals and, therefore,
didn’t get a feel for the individual’s capability along
those lines, that you would have less of an ability to
understand or to judge the reasonableness of the total
zero-base build up?

A No, I den’t. Because again, we're testing
the Company’s procass and the Company has a process
through its budget committee which it critically
reviews that report, so that process is reviewed by
management at a higher level, at the budget committee

level.
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What we do in our review is on a test basis
-- make sure that process works and that’s why 1 cone
back to the confidence factor, that what we‘re doing is
testing the process in developing a leve. of comfort
with the process. We have developed a high level ot
comfort or confidence with the process, so that assures
us in thosa areas that we don’t review that it follows
the management process.

For example, the budget committee -- those areas
are critically reviewed, those people are required to
support that and that gives us the confidence to report
as we have on the forecast.

Q So when you say you have confidence in the
reasonableness of the levels that have been budgeted 1in
the zero-base system, that’s based on your confidence
in the Gulf Power people, to provide a system of
budgeting rather than any confidenze in the individual

cost estimates of the programs themselves?

A Right. We’re, our review --
Q Excuse me.
A -- is of the forecasting system, and 1n the

test tou make sure that forecasting system works and
produces the results that it says it does.
COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Mr. Burgess, could I

try?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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MR. BURGESS: Sure.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Mr. Bell, in testing
the process, and in going back to the employees that
were the ones who in effect supplied the forecast, are
there industry standards, any kind of tables that act
as a sanity check against which you can verify
percentages, numbers, whatever it takes to say, "X
program budgeted at $7 million is within a range." Are
there outside checks?

WITNESS BEll: What we do is not so much on
programs, but from a overall pe_spective we take the
sanity check on the forecast. For exanmple, we look at,
you know, the number of employees in the forecast
versus, you know, the actual year, and a number of data
like that to make sure that the forecast makes sense.
It’s your sanity check.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Okay. What I'm trying
to get to is your sanity check of those numbers, does
it include any generic industry information against
which you‘re making that sanity check?

WITNESS BELL: It does on a macro hasls, but
not down to a program level., Becausz --

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: But there is avalilatble
on a macro basis such guidelines, if you will?

WITNESS BELL: Wz2ll, yeah, like, you know,
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customers per employee and things like that.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: On the areas where you
do examine in depth, do you check them against those
guidelines?

WITNESS BELL: On the program levei there
really are no industry standards. When you get down to
a specific program, let’s say like a program within the
marketing area, there really are no industry standards
in those areas. £» that information is not available.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Maybe "standards" is
the wrong word. Experience, perhaps. Is there anybody
that says electric utilities tend to spend on
conservation programs $300 per employee, or $1,200 per
customer, or something like that floating around?

WITNESS BELL: I have not seen down to that
level of detail, that there and more, you know,
employees per customers, things like that level.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Okay. So it’s really

WITNESS BELL: =-- it‘s more a macro.

COMMISSTONER EASLEY: 1'm loocking for
information apparently nobody’'s developed.

WITNESS BELL: Not that we would be
comfortable that it would be reliable enough to make

some reasonable --
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COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Well, then ,how when
you lock at these, if Gulf people tell you that program
X, whatever it is ycu’ve decided to look at, and when I
say program I’m including whatever function, whether
it’s a relationship of employees to customers, or
whatever it is that you're looking at, that the cost,
projected cost is $5 million. Outside of the fact that
it doesn’t sound very high, what do you use for measure
it against?

WITNESS BELL: Well, you know, for example,
if you take -- let me just give you a example like
turbine and boiler maintenance. I mean, there is
support for thcse estimates in the projects. They have
outside engineering firms, you know, give them
estimates to support how much it‘s going to cost to do,
you know, that specific piece of maintenance, so I
mean, you know, that’s the kind of thing that you look
at. In that example.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Thank you.

Q (By Mr. Burgess) Mr. Bell, moving on to the
it*ems that are trended from a previous budget, is your
performance or your activity very similar; that is,
that you would actually go back through and look at the
previous budget in some arear, in some depth and then,

perhaps, past somewhat on the reasonableness of that,
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and then involve yourself in the process?

A It would be similar, yes.

Q And would it be true that there would be some
of the areas of the budget that are trended, that you
haven’t taken that same depth and gore back ind
reviewed the previous budjet to determine specifically
its reasonableness and pass judgment on that?

A That'’s correct. But again, I want to point
out we develop a confidence level with the process, and
it’s a very high confidence level, and that what we
rely on.

Q But again there, you ex>leore some in depth
and some you would attest to the -easonableness, but it

would be more on the grounds of yosur confidence in the

process =--
A Right.
Q -- rather than locking at the reasonableness

of the numbers themselves?

A Well, you do both. You step back when you’'re
done with the forecast and look at the reasonableness
of the results and make sure it makes sense.

Q What would you use to look at that?

A Well, you would use a number, what I call
macro benchmark. You make sure that kilowatt hours per

customer, you know, tie into prior-year trends. You
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compare it to prior year trends, basically, and rake
sure it’s in the context of prior-year trends.

Q So at that peoint you’re talking about
ultimate macro; that is total company?

A Right, the total company basis. Tha: it
makes the number of employees make sense, given, you
know, the prior years and what the new prodrams are.
Q Do you have a -- what would be the approximate
number of, or percertage of, programs that you would
have looked back into in the depth in which you’re
actually examining the reasonableness of the previous
budget versus those at which you gain confidence
beciuse you believed in the budgeting process?

A Let me -- you're asking how many specific

programs we tested in detail?

Q Yes.

A Let me just -- (Pause). We did about 25%.
Q Okay. And on the zero-base budgeting”?

A That would be overall.

Q Overall.

A Zero, I don’t have the number for what it

would have been.

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, Mr. Bell, that’'s all
we have.

MS. RULE: Staff has no guestions.
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COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Major?

MAJOR ENDERS: 1 have no questions.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: While you all are
looking, let me ask a "curiosity question," as
Commissioner Gunter would say.

Mr. Bell, are you familiar with the terms
"rational"™ versus “incremental" budgeting?

WITNESS BELL: I’m familiar with incremental
budgeting; I’m not familiar with the term "rational."

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Okay. That took care
of that very guickly. Thank you.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Mr. Bell, on Page 26 of
your direct testimony, Lines 20, 21 and 22 there, "The
1990 forecast represents an accurate simulation of the
financial results which should occur if key assumptions
proved true."”

WITNESS BELL: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: So your audit, 1in
essence, is based on key assumptions?

WITNESS BELL: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Okay. And those key
assumptions depends, obviously, on the person making

them can change and, obviously, future events can

affect their accuracy, right?

WITNESS BELL: Yes, sir.
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COMMISSIONER BEARD: Okay. Thanks.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Redirect?

MR. STONE: None. We have no redirect of
this witness.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right. Exhibits have
been stipulated?

MR. STONE: That is correct.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right, sir, thank you
very much, you may De excused.

(Witness Bell excused.)

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Let’s take a 10-minute
break and then we’ll take the next witness..

(Brief recess.)

(Hearing reconvened at 10:40 a.m.)

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Let’s get started.

MR. HOLLAND: Commissioner, Mr. McMillan is
our next witness, and I do not believe he has been

sworn.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Raise your right hand.

RTCHARD J. McMILLAN

was called as a witness on behalf of Gulf Power Company

and, after being first duly sworn, testified as

follows:

MR. HOLLAKND: There is one preliminary matter
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before we put Mr. McMillan on that needs to be taken
cire of with respect to the Prehearing Order. We noted
in going back through the Order that four schedules
zttached to his d_rect testimony had not been
jre-marked. We need to get numbers for those.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: All right.

MR. HOLLAND: If you will look at his first
schedule to his direct testimony, the second page,
Schedule 16 through 19 have not been pre-numbered.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: All right. We’ve got
everything up to Schedule 16, is that correct?

MR. HOLLAND: Yes, sir.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: What’‘s that next
number, Mr. Pruitt?

MR. PRUITT: 566.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Have you all been
numbering them irdividually?

MR. HOLLAND: We should. That’'s how we’ve
been doing it.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: All right. 567, was
that right?

MR. PRUITT: 566.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: 1‘ve already got --
okay, 566 would be Schedule 16, 567 would be 17, 568

Schedule 18 and 569 would be Schedule 19.
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DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HOLLAND:

Q Mr. HMcMillan, would you state your name and
your business address, your position with Gulf Power
Company?

A My name is Richard J. McMillan, my business
address is 500 Bayfront Parkway, and my title is
Supervisor of Financial Planning.

Q Mr. McMillan, have you filed testimony in

this docket entitled, "Direct Testimony of Richard J.

McMillan?"

A Yes, I have.

Q Do you have any corrections to that
testimony?

A No. I do not.

Q If I were to ask you the guestions today

contained in that testimony, would your answers be the
same?
A Yes, they would.

MR. HOLLAND: Mr. Chairman, we’d ask Mr.
McMillan’s prefiled testimony be inserted into the
record as though read.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: 1t will be inserted
into the record as though read.

MR. HOLLAKND: As I stated earlier, his
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exhibits, I think all of his exhibits have been
stipulated to.

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Including those four?

MR. HOLLAND: Including those four, I
believe.

(Exhibit Nos. 49 through 63 previously
stipulated into the record.)

(Exhibit Nos. 566 through 56% marked for

identification)
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GULF POWER COMPANY

Before The Florida Public Service Commission
Direct Testimony of
Richard J. McMillan
In Support of Rate Relief
Docket No. B9134.-E1
Date of Filing December 15, 1989

Please state your name and business address.

Richard J. McMillan, 500 Bayfront Perxway, Pensacs

la
Florida, 232501,
Please describe your educational and professional
background.
1 graduated fror Louisiana State University n 197+

with a Bachelor ¢f Science Degree 1n AcCcoudntint,
Immediately following graduation, 1 was emp.cy
Gulf Power Company as an Internal Auditor. 1 hawve
held various accounting positions, inc.ud:rna Tt af!
Internal Aucitor, Staff Financial Aralyst, Staff
Accountant, Cocrdinator of Internal Accounting
Controls, and in July 1982, I was promoted to ny
current position as Supervisor of Financla.
Planning. During my employment, 1 graduated trom t!
University of West Florida in 1983 with a Master of

Science Degree 1in Business Administration.

Briefly describe your duties and responsibilities as

&

v
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Supervisor of Financial Planning.

1 am respc .sible for preparing the Company Operatinc
Budget and Forecast, administering the Capital
Additions Budget, preparing various regulatory
reports such as the FPSC Surveillance Report, rate
relief studies and filings, and preparing or
assisting with various financial anpalyses and repurts

for management and outside parties,

What is the purpose of your testimony?

The purpose of my testimony 1s to present CL1f's
financial forecast, which is the basis of tne
projected data for the 1990 test period, and to
develop the test year rate base, net operat.ng incere
(NOI), and cost of capita)l, and to calculate tne
resulting revenue deficiency which the Corparny ics
currently identifying in this filing. In adé:.t.on,
will support the calculation of the "nit Power fa.&f

amounts which were directly allocated to tnat

jurisdiction.

Bave you prepared an exhibit that contains
information to which you will refer in your
testimony?

Yes,
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Counsel: Wwe ask that Mr., McMillan's Exhibit,
comprised of 19 Schedules, be marked

-

for identification as Exhioit [RIM-1)

Were all of the schedules in this exhibit prepared
under your supervision?

Yes.

Are you also the sponsor of certain Minimum Filing
Reguirements (MFRs)?
Yes. These are listed on Schedule 19 at the enc of r;

exhibit.

Mr. McMillan, you have indicated that you will
present and support the financial forecast used in
developing the 1990 test year data, Please explain
what you are supporting in this filing.

As noted by Mr. Gilbert in his overv.ew of Gulf's
planning and budgeting process, there are eight
component budgets which are prepared outside of my
area and are supported by other witnesses 1n this
proceeding. Thes2 component budgets are noted on Mr.
Gilbert's Schedule 1, and the responsible witness 1s
specified for each. 1 am supporting how the outputs

from these component budgets were utilized, 1in
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conjunction with other information and data, to

develop the Company's financial forecast and Annua.
Operatin, Budget, which 1 have used in developing the
Company's 1990 test year rate base, net operating

income, and cap‘tal structure.

Please explain how the financial forecast was
jeveloped.

The outputs from Gulf's budgeting process, compris:ing
the eight component budgets, are formatted and
tailored 1 a manner to fucilitate their input 1nto
the financial model, along with various other income
statement and balance sheet amounts, which in turn
generates the financial and accounting statements

that comprise Gulf's financial forecast,

What is the financial model to which you have
referred?

The financial model is a computer-based model that
simulates Gulf's actual financial and accounting
results based on a given set of inputs. This mode]
enables management to evaluate the effect of various
operating alternatives and to gencrate financial
statements for a given set of assumptions. ~ulf's

Anrial Operating Budget is produced by the financ:ial
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model based upon the outputs of Gulf's budgeting
process. Schedule 1 1s a summarizecd f{lowcnart of tre
financial model inpu.s and outputs reguired 1in

producing the financial forecast,

Please describe Schedules 2 and 3.

schedule 2 is Gulf's 1989 and 1990 projected balance
Sheets, which are the basis for developinc the rate
base and capital structure. Schedule 3 15 the 1989
and 1990 Income Statements used 1n developirng net
operating income. These financ.al statements Iror
the financial model are based on Gulf's 1990 Budget,
which is based on actual data through August 1989,
and the current budget estimates for September 1989

forward.

You have summarized utility plant data on your
Schedule 2. Bave you prepared a report with a
further breakdown of the plant balances?

Yes. Schedule 4 includes a further Lreakdown of the
ut1lity plant balances by FERC account, along with
the monthly activity in these accoun.s. The
projected plant data 1s based on the October 1989
Capital Additions Budget which 1s supported by

various witnesses, as noted on Mr. Gilbert's
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Schedule 2,

Have you prepared a schedule which shows the
derivation of rate basc?

Yes. Schedule 5, entitled "l13-Month Average FHate
Base for the Period Ended December 31, 1990,7
reflects Gulf's 1990 test year rate base. Cclumn oOre
includes the 1990 budget data 1 previously presented
on Schedules 2 and 4. The second column i1ncludes the
regulatory adjustments reguired in order to restate
the system or per books amounts toc the proper Lacls
for computing base rate revenue requirements. The
third column i1ncludes the Unit Power Sales [(LUPS)
adjustments which I will address .n more ceta:l
later. The resulting net amounts have been
jurisdictionalized by Mr. O'Sheasy in the cost i.f

service study filed in this case.

Please explain the rate base regulatory adjustments
in column 2 of Schedule 5.

These adjustments are listed on page Z of the
schedule. Adjustments 1 and 2 were nade to remove
the utility plant investments which lave bLeen
allocated to our Appliance Sales and Service

function. These non utility amounts are hased on an
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annual study conducted by the Plant Accounting
Department and are primarily comprised of the
building space, office furniture and transportat.on
equipment utilized i1n the Appliance Sales and Serv:.ce
function, Ad-justment 3 1s for the removal of amounts
in rate base arising out of several Company and other
investigations into i1mproprieties related to charges
for transformers and their repair. Adjustrent 4 .&
for the removal of the interest bearing construct.on
work in progress (CWIP) included in the forecas:®.
Since these projects are eligible for Allowarnce far
Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC), the; have
been removed from rate base, and are listecd or

Schedule 6. Adjustmert 5 ipcludes the work.ng

capital adjustments, which are included on Schedu.e

Please explairn Schedule 7, entitled "13-Month Averaae
Working Capital for the Period Ended December 31,
1990."

As shown on this schedule, all 1tems on the balance
sheet which are not included 1n Net Utility Plant or
Capital Structure were considered in leveloplng
working capital, All of the remaining accounts were
examined, and I have excluded the amounts related tc

the non utility operations, fuel accounts, and




[N

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

23
24

25

740
Docket No. B91345-E]

Witness: R:chard J. McMillan
Page &

accounts which earn or incur interest charges. The
resulting total adjusted working capitai waf then
allocated to the retail, Unit Power Sales (UPS), and
other jurisdictions by Mr. 0O'Sheasy, wWith the
exception of the UPS fuel stcck, materials and
supplies, and prepayments, which were calculated ano

directly assigned to UPS.

Before leaving the area of rate base, were there any
adjustments made to rate base in the 1984 rate case
that you are not making in this case?

Yes. First, there were several adjustrents related
to forecast revisions which are not necessar¥y 1n this
case. Second, the adjustment to remove the Plant
Daniel Rail Cars is no longer necessary since Lhese
cars have been retired and the current ra:l cars are
being leased. Third, the minor adjustments to
exclude a portion of the EBonifay and Craceville
Commercial Offices have not been made. These
contruction costs will be discussed in this filing by
Mr. Conner. Fourth, the adjustment to disallow the
investment related to the Leisure Lakes Subdivision
has not been made. As discussed py Mr. Jordan, a
large portion has been sold, and the remaining

substation is used and useful electric i1nvestment and
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will remain so. The fifth adjustment not rade
concerns the unamortized rate case expenses related
to this rate filing. This is a legitimale rate bLase
item, and the Company should be allowed to recover
these costs in full. The final item 18 the inclusion
of the deferred credit related to the fue! and
conservation over-recoveries i1n rate base, aon which
interest is paid, and should therefore be excluded
from worxing capital. {The Commission adjustments

not made are listec on MFR A-11.)

Now moving to Net Operating Income (NOI), please
explain Schedule B entitled "Net Operatinc Income for
the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 1990."

This schedule is formatted i1n the same manner as the
rate base schedule. The first column 15 rased on the
1990 pudget data from Schedule 3. The serond column
includes the regulatory adjustmente, while the thirad
column includes the UPS amounts. The jur:isdictiocnal
factors and amounts were obtained from Mr. O"'Sheasy's
Exhibit. The regqulatory adjustments in column two
are listed on pages 2 and 3 of Schedule B, with mrre
detailed calculations presented on separate schedules
as noted under the heading of Schedule Reference, As

noted earlier, I will discuss the UPS adiustments angd
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calculations later in my testimony.

Have yo. made the proper adjustments to remove all
fuel and conservation revenues &nd expenses from NOI?
Yes. As noted on pages 2 and 3 of Schedule &, the
fuel adjustments are 1, 4, and ©, and the
conservation adjustments are 2, 10, ané¢ l13. Since
these revenue. and expenses are recoverable through
the Fuel and Conservation Cost Recovery Clausex, they
must be removea from NOI wher determining base rate
revenue requirements. T'e calculaticon of these

adjustments is summarized on Schedules 9 and 10,

Please explain adjustments 3 and 1¢ on Schedule 8.
These adjustments are necessary to eliminate county
and municipal franchise fee revenues ancd expenses
from consideration in setting Lase rates, As
required by Commission Order 6650 1n Docket

No. 74437-EU, franchise fees are added directly to
the county or municipal! customer's bill and are no
considered in determining base rate revenue
requirements, The county and municipal franchise [e:
revenues which have been elimipated are shown on a

separate line of the financial model income statement

as reflected on ny Schedule 3, page 11 of 16.
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How have you treated industry associatic:r dues and
institutional advertising?

Although the Company feels that these costs are
legitimate utility business expenses, in accordance
with the current Commission policy to disallow
institutional advertising and dues related to
Chambers of Commerce and lobbying, I have remcved
these expenses from NO! in adjustments & and 7 on
Schedule B. Schedule 11 includes a listing by
association of the dues related to the lccal Chambers
of Commerce and groups atfiliated w.th lobby:ng
activities. Schedule 12 i1ncludes the compilation ¢f

institutional advertising by FERC account and

sub-account number.

Please explain adjustment B related to marketing
support activities and adjustment 9 related to
investigation expenses.

Expenses related to marketing support activities have
been removed in adjustment B8, ir accordance with the
Commission's policy teo disallow expenses that are
promotional in nature as stated in Commicsion

Order 6463. Adjustment 9 was made to remove all of
the legal expenses associated with the i1nvestigations

of alleged improprieties witnin the Company.
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Please explain adjustment 11 titled Peabody Equity
Return on Schedule 8.

This adjustment is necessary to prcperly exclude frop
ROI the equity return related to our Peabody coal
prepayment. All amounts related to this transaction
have been removed from this case because these costs
are being recovered in the Fuel Cost Recovery (lausc
in accordance with Commission Order 20133 in Docket
No. BBGOOl1-EI. The total amount in the forecast has
been eliminated through this adjustment and can be

verified to my Schedule 3, page 13 of 16.

Please explain your adjustment to Taxes Other Than
Income?

Adjustment 15 on Schedule 8 i1s required to retlect
the gross receipts taxes and FPSC assessment fees
that are associated with the fuel, conservation, and
franchise fee revenues which were removed .n

ad justments 1, 2, and 3. ©Schedule 13 shows the

calculation of this adjustment,

Please explain adjustment 16 on Schedule 3 to income

taxes,

This adjustment 18 required to reflect the federal

]

and state income taxes related to adjustments
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through 15. Schedule 14 shows the calculation of tre

adjustment .

Have you calculated the appropriate adjustment to
income taxes to reflect the synchronized interest
expense related to the jurisdictional adjusted rate
base?

Yes. Adjustment 17 on Schedule 8 reflecte the tax
effect of synchronizing interest expense to rate
base, and Schedule 15 shows the calculat:on of th:s
adjustment., The jurisdictiunal capitelizatior
amounts and cost rates were taken directly from
Schedule 16, and the interest expense was taken fror
Schedule 3. As shown on Schedule 15, 1 have alsc
included the imputed interest for Job Development
Investment Tax Credits (JDITC) in accordance w.tn the
final IRS regulations allowing 1nterest

synchronization for JDITC.

Do you have anything further to add to your
discussion 2f how NOI was developed?

Yes. I would like to point out that the Company has
made all the Commission adjustments made in our 1984
rate case except ror those related to forecast

corrections, benchmark O & M adjustments, and the



ot S

i0
11

12

14
15%
16

17

19
20

22
43
24

25

746
Docket No, 89.345-E]

Witness : Richarc J. McMillan
Pace 14
area and economic development expenses. Mr. Bowers

will address the appropriateness of our area anc
economic de. clopment expenses, and how they
contribute to the Company's cbjective of min mizing
the cost of service and revenue requirements of all
our customers. The other operation and mainterarnce
expenses are justified and supported by several
witnesses in thir case as noted on Mr. Gilbert's

Schedule 2,

Have you also developed the jurisdictional capital
structure and cost of capital for the 1990 test year?
Yes, Schedule 16, page 1, shows the jurisdictiona.
13-month average amounts of each class of capital fo:
the year ended December 31, 1990. It also shows the
average cost rates and weilghted coust component:s for
each class of capital. Page 2 of this schedule cghowe
how the jurisdictional capital structure was der.ve:
starting with the system amounts., Pages 3 and § chow

the calculation of the cost rates for long-term detlt

and preferred stock.

Bow were the cost rates for short-term debt, customer
deposits, and investment tax credits determined?

The short-term 1nterest rates were based on the
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October 1989 Data Resources, Inc. forecast of
interest rates; the customer deposit cost rate was
based on tne effective rate for the pericc end:ng
August 3], 198B9; and the weighted cost for investment
tax credits was calculated in accordance with current
IRS regulations using the three main sources of

capital.

Please explain how the jurisdictional capital
structure was developed.

As shown on page 2 of Schedule 16, [ started witn the
13-month average total company capital structure b
class of capital. These total company amounts were
calculated based on the projected balances on
Schedule 2 of my exhibit. 1In columns 2 through 7, !
have i1dentified six adjustments which werc removec
from specific classes of capital, and the remaining
adjustments required to reconcilie rate base and

r:apnal structure were made on a prorata basis as

shown in columns 10 and 1].

Would you explain the six items for which you have
made specific capital structure adjustments?
The first twu, the "common dividends declared"™ and

the "unamortized debt premiums, discounts, 1Ssulng
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expenses and losses on reacquired debt," are account
specific and have been directly assigned to the
common stock and lona-term debt classes of cap:ital.
The next two, the "Daniel Coal Buyout™ and the
"Peabody Prepayment®” firancings, reflect the specif:c
debt and equity funds used i1n these transactions, and
subseguently approved by the Commission for recovery
through the Fuel Cost Recovery Clause. The fifth

item is for removing the non utility amounts fi.om the

A

three main sources of capital, and the sixth 1tern
F

to remove the UPS capital structure amounts,

Please elaborate on the basis of the non utility and
UPS capital structure adjustments.

The non utility adjustment was removed from long-terrw
debt, preferred stock, and common equity as a
reasonable proxy for the pool of funds used 11 thege
activities. The rationale and just:fication for
treating Gulf's non utility investments in this
manner are discussed more thoroughly by

Mr. Scarbrough and Dr. Morin 1n their testimony. The
UPS capital structure adjustments are based on the
debt, preferred, deferred taxes, and common eguity

that is recovered from UPS customers in those

contracts.
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Does this conclude your discussion of how you
developed the requested Cost of Capital?

Yes. These calculations result in an overall rate of
return of B8.34 percent based con & reguesied return on
equity of 13 percert, which 1s supported in the

testimony of Dr. Morin.

Bave you calculated the jurisdictional revenue
deficiency for the test period brought about by the
difference in Gulf's achieved jurisdictional rate of
return of 6.60 percent and the proposed rate of
return of 8.34 percent?

Yes. The revenue deficiency 1s $26,29%,000, as
calculated on Schedule 17, which references tne
schedule where each figure was derived, Schedu.e l&

showes the calculation of the NOI multiplier,

You have previously mentioned that you are supportin3g
the UPS calculations that have been used 1in
developing rate base, NOI, and capital structure 1n
this filing. Would you explain how these amounts
were calculated?

The UPS amounts, which have been ident.f1ed on
Schedules 5, B8, and 16, were computed in exactly the

same manner as the amounts allowed in our 1984 rate
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case. The rate base and NOlI amounts were calculated
by applying the UPS sales ratio times the total
Scherer related amounts. The sales ratio for
production-related items in 1990 15 based o 149 mw
of Scherer UPS divided bv 212.175% mw Scherer 1IC
system peak-hour capacity rating. The transmiscion
sales ratioc 15 based on transmission investment and
expenses recovered from the UPS customer per the
contracts. The general plant investment anc A & C
expenses wire allocated to Plant Scherer and the
transmission function based on salaries arnc wages,
and then allocated tc UPS based on the IIPS sales
ratios in accordance with the UPS contracts.

The resulting UPS adjustments are essentially all
of the investment and expenses which are recoverec
from the UFS customers per the contracts, with the
exception of three reporting differences, which are
due to retail ratemaking reguirements. The first
difference 1s due to the UPS contracts uti1i1z1ing
month-end balances for investment, which results 1n a
slight difference due to twelve month average versus
thirteen month average investments. Second, the
working capital in the UPS contracts includes
materials and supplies, prepayments, and one-eighth

of UPS O & M expenses. For retall ratemaking
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purposes, the Florida Commission requires the vse of
the balance sheet approach for determining working
capital; therefore, the working capital for ajl
jurisdictions (including UPS and wholesale)] mu:zt be
based upon the balanre sheet approach in order to
reflect the proper retail working capital
reguirements. The third difference between the UPS
contracts and the LPS amounts reportec ir this f..1ing
is the i1nclusion of the unamortized JDITC :n the
capital structure, as required by this Commissior. A
statea above, these minor rerorting differences are
the result of retail ratemaking requirements, anc afe
required in order to ensure that the UPS adjustmerts
are calculated using the same methodology as the
system or company totals from which they are be:ing

removed.

How have you treated the 1989 Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission's (FERC) Audit Exceptions in the
development of the test year amounts?

The exceptions in the FERC Audit which the company
concurred with have been properly reflected 1n the
1990 projections, but there are several material
issues or audit exceptions which have not been

resolved at the time of this filing. Therefcre, we
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wi.l furnish the Commission with any adjustments to my
cclculations which may be required upon the resclution

o. these issues.

Does this conclude your testimony?
ies,

(End of Prefiled Direct Testimony)
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Q (By Mr. Holland) Mr. McMillan, have you

prepared a summary of your testimony?

A Yes.
Q Please summarize.
A The purose of my testimony is to present and

support Gulf’s 1992 financial forecast. This forccast
was used in preparing the 1990 test year amounts. 1
have also developed the jurisdictional rate base, NOI,
cost of capital and revenue requirements as supported
in my prefiled exhibits.

I'm also supporting the amount. allocated to
the unit power sales jurisdiction. The retail revenue
deficiency of $24,295,000, which I have calculated, is
required to enable the Company to earn a 13% ROE, or
return on equity, on its retail investments.

Based upon Dr. Morin’s updated cost of eguity
to 13.5%, this would increase my retall revenue
deficiency calculations by $2,562,000. This concludes
my summary.

MR. HOLLAND: Tender Mr. McMillan for cross
examination.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Mr. Burgess.

MR. BURGESS: Yes, sir.

CRCSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. BURGESS:

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q Mr. McMillan, with regard to Issue 2, plant
in service, are you aware -- are you familiar with Mr.
Larkin’s testimony on plant in service?

A Yes, I am.

Q Has he used actual for the first three months
of the projected test year?

A Hold on one second. I think it was just

through February.

Q Is December the first month of the 13-month
average?

A Yes, through February of ‘90, that’s correct.

Q So that would be the first three months?

A Tnat'’s correct.

Q Have you examined his projections for the

following two months, that is the fourth and fifth
month of the test year, as it would compare to the
actuals that have come in?

A His exhibits did not include a monthly
breakdown of his estimates, but we went back and
trended the figures based on the period that he
defined. And as I stated in wy -- really 1t’'s stated
more completely in my rebuttal testimony, there were
some major -- two refunds related to Scherer, Unit 3,
and common facilities when making those adjustments of

roughly $6 million, and there were one or two

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Other than that, we are essentially on
budget. We agree with the forecast that we filed. !is
numbers are significantly understated by going back and
using a prior 24-month period, which included some
other large r .ductions in our plant in service that are
nonrecurring in nature, such as the coal car
retirements, et cetera.

Q Are you saying in response to my question,
then, that you do not know what he budgeted or what he
projected for the fourth and fifth month?

A Hold on a second. {Pause) 1 stand corrected.
He did have an exhibit, HL-3, that showed some monthly
estimates. (Pause)

Now, what was your specific question? You
want me to compare actual to the numbers that he had in
his exhibits?

Q For the month of March.

A We are showing approximately a $2,000
difference.

Q Okay, and for the month of April?

A Roughly about the same. We’'re pretty close
to his figure. 1It’s around $2,000 over his figure.

Q You’re saying the actuals are coming in --

A Above his estimate, right.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Q By $2,000?

A Right. I'm sorry, $2 million.

Q And you saild something before that in a
previous answer; you said something about a correction
that you had made as a result of a nonrecurring itcm.
Would you please explain what you were referring to?

A As far as why his trend is too low?

Q You had =-- specifically with regard to an
answer you gave earlier.

A Right.

Q You said -- first you referred to an item
regarding Scherer.

A That’s correct.

Q Okay. Would you break that down for me

please and tell me specifically what vou are referring

to?
A The Scherer piece?
Q Yes.
A Rcughly, and I can‘t give you exact numbers,

but basically you’‘re looking at a $5.3 million
adjustment to plant in service related to the
renegotiated price for Unit 3 that we paid Georgia
Power. They refunded us some dollars, >f which those

adjustments are also reflected in, I think, Issue 3 in

'the Prehearing Order. The remainder, there was abcut a

FLORIDA PUBLIT SERVICE COMMISSION
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million-three or four on deferred taxes, but plant in
service figure actually was 5.3 million.

Then there was an additional adjustment
related to our common facilities. Based on an SCS
audit, we determined that there was a slight overcharge
frem OPC re’ated to the common facilities, aad that
resulted in roughly a $630,000 reduction to plant in
service related to Scherer also. So that the sum of
those two, that’s what I said was approximately 536
mill.ion.

Q Okay. And sc what you'‘re saying is your
numbers == your numbers -- wWere above the amounts
actually coming in, but since you’ve made those
adjustments, if you put those adjustments then back
into your numbers, you’re coming in as you would expect
relative to your projections?

A That'’'s correct.

Q Can you tell me for the month of March what

your projection was relative to the actual that came

A Okay. Based on a March budget-to-actual,
what do you want me to compare, just the plant in
service amount?

Q Yes, please.

A The plant and service amount that we filed

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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was $11.7 million over our actual March, which roughly
6 million of that was related to Scherer, an additional
od$4 million was related to some retirements that were
strictly a timing deal that hit earlier than what we
had includec in the forecast, and really that affects
both plant in service and accumulated depreciation. So
your net plant in effect, is zero.

bad then there was a roughly 2 million, $2.6
million, worth of projects that had not cleared as of
March, which a large portion of that is in CWIP,
noninterest-bearing CWIP. So when you’‘re doing ycur
plant analysis, you really need to look at all
component: that affect the rate base, not what the
variance is in just plant in service.

Q The timing question is one that you examine
in projecting the plant in service balances by month
for the projected test year, isn’t it?

A Yes.

Q And that’s one of the considerations you have
to deal with in determining your projections?

A Yes, obviously. I mean, as 1 stated earlier,
we are only about a million and a half under budget on
construction expenditures. And that was directly a
timing thing. We just closed our books for May and we

are actually over budget, when we stated in my rebuttal
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testimony that we did know there were several
production projects, that there was a couple months’
delay, and we do know for sure that all those ha ‘e been
caught up, and, in fact, we are over budget for the
month of May.

So you start picking little, you know, szall
variances, and you try tc make some adjustment in one
piece. You need to look at the CWIP, See, he didn’t
make any adjustments to our CWIP, he just “ried to
adjust plant in service. And I'm saying that’'s
inappropriate, because the monies have been spent and
would be included in rate base, whether I’ve got it in
plant in service or noninterest-bearing CWIP.

Q With regard to Issue 16, the working capital
for UPS salee, if the Commission removes Plant Scherer,
Gulf’s share of Plant Scherer, from the jurisdictional
rate base, would there be a certain amount of working
capital associated with that, with the operations ot

Plant Scherer?

A That could be directly attributable to Plant
Scherer?

Q Yes.

A Yes, that would be the fuel stockpile,

obviously, and the other materials and supplies at the

plant would be the primary dollars.
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Q Is there a working capital component that’'s
calculated into the UPS rate that’s charged, or your

off-systems sales are charged?

A To the UPS customer?

Q Yes.

A Yes, there is.

Q Is that based on a formula one-eighth O&M?

A P component of that is, the component we call

cash working capital component, which would be,
essentially, the UPS customer pays for theilr allocated
percent of fuel stockpile, the other materials and
supplies, prepayments, which are nct very material but
there’s some deposits involved, and the remainder is
what in the UPS contracts is considered cash working
capital, which is based on a formula one-eighth O&M
calculation.

Q Is there any reduction as a result of any
credits associated with income tax, accrued income
taxes, anything like that, or does that -- 1s your
description all-inclusive of the working capital
component that'’s determined for the UPS sales?

A Well, that description would be the tntal
amount of working capital. You take one-eighth of the
O&M, including the fuel burn at the base unit, and

that’s why --
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You know, one of the things that causes that
calculation to be volatile is it‘s not all fuel burn,
it’s just the fuel burn out of the base unit. So to
the extent that they'’re not taking base energy, you can
go from a very small amount of working capital to a
large amount, as far as the billings to UPS.

And, obviously, we have done the working
capital in this case for UPS related to the balance
sheet approach, which that’s what this Commission
regquires and what wais approved in our last case, and 1s
the only appropriate method to calculate the UPS
jurisdiction because that’s what the system
calculations are based on is a balance sheet. You
can’t pick and choose what you’‘re going to pull out of
each column.

Q S0 what you'’re saying is if the Commission
did remove it, that even though FERC jurisdiction would
calculate it on a one-eighth, it would be more
appropriate to move it on a balance sheet bacis.

A In the retail calculatisns, absolutely. If
you want me to calculate retail on a cne-eighth, I can
assure you, we did some guick calculations, that the
retail working capital requirement is increased by over
$40 million.

Q If you want me to calculate -- I'm just
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trying to understand the theory by which you woulid
remove working capital component if the Commission
disallows the Scherer plant.

A To me it would be the amounts related to the
fuel stockpile, and the other materiels and supplies
would essenti .i1ly make up the working capital that
would be related to Scherer, the 63 megawatts that’'s
out there.

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, Mr. McMillan, that’'s
all we have.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Staff?

MS. RULE: Major Enders.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Excuse me, Majo:s. I
apologize.

MAJOR ENDERS: Nothing.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Staff?

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MS. RULE:

Q Mr. McMillan, I would like for you, 1l you
could, for you to prepare a late-filed exhibit
comparing budget-to-actual plant in service, CWIP
noninterest-bearing and accumulated depreciation.

MS. RULE: What number would be that be?
Would it be Late-Filed 5707

Mr. Pruitt, is that correct, Latc-Filed 5707
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MR. PRUITT: 570.

Q (By Ms. Rule) And J would like you to use
the same format as you used in your late-filed
deposition Exhibit No. 5 in Public Counsel’s
deposition. Dn you remember that one?

A Yes. That was done through February, if I
remember correctly.

Q I believe that’s correct.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Give me a short t.itle
for that.

MS. RULE: 1I’11 give you a title. 1It’s not
that short.

"comparison of Budgeted to Actual Plant In
Service, CWIP Noninterest-Bearing and Accumulated
Depreciation.”

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Period of time.

MS. RULE: Pardon me?

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Period of time.

M5. RULE: I would like Mr. McMillan to use
May 1990 instead of February 1990 figures as he used 1in
the late-filed deposition exhibit.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: All right.

(Late-Filed Zxhibit No. 570 identified.)

Q Mr. McMillan do ycu have an exhibilt packet 1irn

front of you that Staff has provided? 1 belleve I see
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it at Counsel table.

A I have one now.

Q Thank you. Exhibit 431, which should be in
that exhibit packet, do you have that?

A Yes, I do.

Q Part One of the Response to Interrngatory No.
88 contained in that exhibit shows a credit to
accumulated deferred income taxes of $1,587,608, as
part of the adjustment to record cash received from
Georgia Power per reduction of the selling price for
Scherer 3, is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Why is this amount different from the amount
included for accumulated deferred income taxes as shown
in Gulf’s position on Issue 37

A That figure, along with the accumulated
depreciation and deferred tax amounts, will change
because of the monthly amortization or your actual
depreciation that we had in the budget based on the
inflated price. And as you depreciate the plant with
the higher number, obviously, you had more accumulated
depreciation and it actually decreases this deferred
tax amount as it’s recorded on the bnoks and recognized

on the books.

So we have a schedule. We, basically, that
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1-5-87 was as of December ‘89, and we went on ahead and
computed what the impact of that would have been to
have gone ahead through the end of 1990, the test
period, and figured out what the 13-month average
amount that was included in our forecast related to
those amounts.

Q So this is for the end of ‘507

A It’s the 13-month average amount that would
have been reflected in our ‘90 projections.

Q Are there any deferred taxes or investment
tax credits associated with the acquisition adjustment
recorded as a result of the purchase of a portion of
the common facilities at Scherer?

A I don‘t believe there were any. These
deferred taxes on the Unit 3 were related to the
construction overheads, and there were none of those
transferred from OPC in Dalton, so there were none. It
was strictly an adjustment to plant-in-service and a
small amount related to plant acquisitiocn.

Q Did the refund that Gulf received in 1989
from Oglethorpe Power, related to the Scherer common
facility purpose, have any effect on deferred taxes or
ITCB?

A Well, obviously, over time it could, as your

book tax timing differences related to depreciation.
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But as of -- when we made this entry, there were no
deferred taxes related to that refund.

Q If Scherer Unit 3 is excluded from rate base,
it will be necessary to remove associated deferred
taxes and ITCs, won’t it?

A Yes. It should be.

Q I'd like you to refer to Exhibit 432, which
should also be in your exhibit packet.

A I have that.

Q I'd like you to look at the second page,
which contains a schedule showing operating expenses
related to Plant Scherer in ‘89 and '90, and shows the
1990 jurisdictional ITC amortizaticn of $96,000.

A Yes, that’s the jurisdictional amount, right.

Q Has the tax expense in Gulf'’'s filing been
adjusted for this amount?

A The amortization ITC is a deduction. I mean,
it’s really not taxable per se. It’s not a deductible
item, so it would not be.

Q Okay. Gulf has projected working capital of
$81,711,000, is that correct?

A That’'s correct. That’s the jurisdictional
amount, right.

Q Are you familiar with Mr. Larkin’s testimony

in which we recommends removal of deferred credit
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balances of certain expenses that OPC recommends

exclusion?
A Yes.
Q If an adjustment is made by the Commission to

remove certain e.penses from operating income, such as
supplemental pensions, post-retirement life and medical
insurance, school plan appliances or Productivity
Improvement Plan, would it be appropriate to remove the
reserves associated with those expenses from working
capital?

A I would assume it would be because we would
be going back to a pay-as-you-go situatior, so --

Q Gulf reduced expenses related to its
Productivity Improvement Plan by $339,407
jurisdictional, and I believe that's reflected in Issue
92. Did Gulf reduce the reserve?

A I'm sorry, I didn’t hear that question.

Q Okay. I believe in Issue 92, we find that
Gulf reduced expenses relating to the Productivity
Improvement Plan by $339,407.

A In the Prehearing Order? Where we've agreed

to that, yes.

Q Did Gulf reduce the reserve?
A It has not been reduced, no.
Q What would the appropriate system and
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jurisdictional adjustment to working capital be, if

any?

A I'd have to calculate that.

Q Could you provide that in a late-filed
exhibit?

A Yes, I could.

MS. RULE: 1 believe that would be Late-Filed
Exhibit No. 571. System and Jurisdicticnal Adjustment
To Working Capital Relating to PIP Reduction.

(Late-Filed Exhibit No. 571 identified.)

Q (By Ms. Rule) Mr. McMillan, is it correct
that most of the propcsed adjustments to rate base
would also affect deferred taxes and also affect ITCs?

A Yeah, you cculd usually make that -- any of
the plant-related adjustments would have some impact.

Q And would there be effects on both balance
sheet accounts and income statement accounts?

A I don’t know. Typically, what Chis
Commission has done, and we’‘ve agreed is the .unly thing
that makes sense, is to treat all funds as fungible and
just make the adjustments on a pro rata basis, which,
in effect, allocates siome deferred taxes to any rate
base adjustment. So under that scenario, any working
capital or rate base adjustment would have some

deferred taxes assigned to it.
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Q Could you please provide a late-filed
exhibit, and in the exhibit I’d like you to show by
issue number, from the Prehearing Order, effects of
proposed rate base adjustments on deferred taxes, and
also on ITCs, in both the balance sheet and in the
income statement.

COMMISSIONER GUATER: Will you restate what
ycu‘re asking for one more time?

MS. RULE: 1I’d like Mr. McMillan to provide 2
schedule indicating, by issue number, the effects of
rate base adjustments t:hat are proposed in the
Prehearing Order on deferred taxes and ITCs, in both
the balance sheet and in the income statement.

(Late-Filed Exhibit No. 572 identified.,

A I think the only one that we would agree
should have a specific deferred tax adjustment is this
Issue 3, where we¢ have actually -- part of the refund
was directly attributiable to deferred taxes. All other
rate base adjustments should hit that times your
reconciled capital structure and whatever percent .s in
the capital structure -- I'd have to make some
assumption.

Q I would like you to prepare the exhibit as 1if
each issue was the only one being changed, and,

therefore, any effec! would be directly related to that
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proposed adjustment.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Let me ask so I can
understand based on what you asked and what I heard.

You’re saying that in each instance you do a
pro rata adjustment wity the exception of this one?

WITNESS McMILILAN: Well, I mean, the
Commission could make this one pro rata. We’ve
identified how much of that refund was related to
deferred taxes.

COMMISSIONER EEARD: I understand that I
mean, we can make them all specific, we can make them
all pro rata, we can do anything in that sense. But
it’s your position that you would make those
adjustments pro rata with this one exception?

WITNESS McMILLAN: That'’s correct. Because
this one adjustment would actually have changed our
budgeted deferred taxes. To go in and disallow a
portion of a building, sey, is not going to change our
deferred taxes unless we write that off our books
permanently. And to the extent that we're still
depreciating the facilities, we would still have
deferred taxes in our forzacast related to those items.
(Pause)

This one item, the Scherer purchase price,

we've actually recorded on our books additional
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deferred taxes related to that, and that was not
included in my forecast. So it would be appropriate tc
identify that.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Are you asking for some
different assumption in the treatment of deferred
taxes? (Pause)

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Are you saying that it
would not have an impact on an expense item and,
therefore, not on the taxes? Is that an
oversimplification?

WITNESS McMILLAN: No. Just historically --
and I‘'m not sure or clear exactly what adjustment she
wants me to go back on -- but if you really look at the
nature of a working capital disallowance, there is no
deferred taxes related to -- the deferred taxes, or the
bulk of our deferred taxes, are property-related.

There may be some small amount but it would be almost
impossible to go in and isolate with -- it wouldn’t be
totally impossible. With the amount of time, you could
go back and say, "Yes, there’s so many dollars worth of
deferred taxes related to this asset and then -- "

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Did I miss something,

that this was specific to working capital?

MS. RULE: No, it’s rate base adjustments.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Rate bause adjustments.
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WITNESS McMILLAN: Which include working
capital.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Well, to the extent, for
example, that we said no to Plant Scherer inclusion in
rate base, that’s a reduction in rate base; that would
be a reduction, a specific reduction, of deferred taxes
which would, in effect, change the weighting and
everything else, correct?

WITNESS McMILLAN: We could do that on
Scherer easily. I could identify those. Some of the
other little minor disallowances that I may have more
trouble trying to specifically identify deferred tax
related to.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Well, Mr. McHMillan’s
position would be that any resulting -- that the result
would be insignificant. He could certainly indicate
that on the schedule.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Can you provide --

WITNESS McMILLAN: Let me put it this way:
we’'ve never attempted to go through and isolate

deferred taxes related to every single asset. [ mean

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Wait now, let’s don’'t
cloud it up. It wasn’t an asset, it was based on

recommended --
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WITNESS McMILLAN: Disallowances,

COMMISSIONER BEARD: -- disallowances, as
opposed to the Prehearing Order. Exawmple: Scherer.

WITNESS McMILLAN: Right.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Okay?

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Get him to weigh
somehow --

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Can you track that out?
Now, there are some others that, obviously, are in
there that may not affect it at all, it may be an
asterick, because you can’t fget your calculator to run
that far out to the right?

WITNESS McMILLAN: Okay, we can do that.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Is that?

MS5. RULE: Thank you. Let me give a short
title for that, that would be "Effects of Proposed Rate
Fase Adjustments."

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: That's Exhibit No. 572,

MS. RULE: Thank you.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Late-filed.

Q (By Ms. Rule) Mr. McMillan, with regard to
Issue 52, fuel expenses, related expenses. In Page 10
of your direct testimony you state that proper
adjustments have been made to remove all fuel revenues

and expenses from NOI. 1s that correct?
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A What was your last statement? I’m sorry?

Q Basically, asking you to confirm in your
testimony that you state that proper adjustments have
be.:n made to remove fuel revenues and expenses from
NCI?

A That’s correct.

Q Do you have MFRs C-39 and 40 in front of you?
You may or may not need to confirm this. Let me tell
you what it says, and tl.en you decide if you need to
ls0k at it. Hy understanding is that C-39 and C-40
snow federal and state deferred tax expense associated
v ith the Peabody coal buycut and Lhe Daniel coal
buyout.

Do you need to look at the schedule to

confirm that?

A I‘'m familiar with those deferred taxes, yes.
Q Should --
A They do -- there are some deferred taxes

related to our coal buyouts.

Q Shouldn’t those deferred taxes be excluded?

A Well, no“ under Issue 52. I mean, there’s no
revenue or expense impact related to deferred taxes,
per se. 1 mean, that’s just a tax timing difference
that’s recorded on your balance sheet.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Let me ask you a
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question. Where does the benefit, how cdo you calculate
the benefit of those deferred taxes that occurred with
the coal buyouts? Where is that calculation? TIs it in
the fuel adjustment?

WITNESS McMILLAN: No, it is not. The
deferred tax pilece of it is being included ‘n our
capital structure and weould be reflected in the
surveillance report based upon the jurisdictional
reconciliation of rate base and capital structure.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: Okay. And those are
amortized back over the life of that contract, 1s that
correct?

WITNESS McMILLAN: That's correct.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: So if I understand
correctly, they will be carried in the capital
structure zero cost and amortization would be over the,
again, repeating myself, amortization vould be over the
life of that contract?

WITNESS McMILLAN: The une related to the
Daniel, the fuel coal one, that one is defiaitely --
was set up initially when we bought 1t out, and 1it'’s
being amortized over the remaining life or the life of
the buyout periocd. 1t’s like nine years, 1 believe.

The Peabody one has to dc more, it

fluctuates, really, it’s not as big of a deal. The
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difference there is a straight line write-off for tex
purposes, versus what we’ve actually written off on our
books. So it can go up or down, but it is included in
zero cost in our deferred taxes in our --

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: How long was the
Peabody contract?

WITNESS McMILLAN: 10 years, I believe.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: 10 years. So those
deferred taxes would have been where those little
glitches your’re speaking of, those deferred taxes
would be written off in 10 years, is that right? I'm
trying to make sure I un-derstand.

WITNESS McMILLAN: The complete write-off
would be completed after 10 years; therefore, there
would be no deferred taxes after that.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: All right.

Q (By Ms. Rule) Mr. McMillan, in your testimony
you referred to the Peabody coal prepayment. Is that
the same thing as the Peabody coal buyout that I
mentioned?

A In actuality it is a prepayment. We did not
buy out of that contract. And that’s why 1 tried to
stick with a prepayment where I couid. Some places 1t
may be listed as a buyout. Daniel was a buyout, and

therefore we couuld -- but the other one related to the
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Crist Plant, it was actually just a prepayment. We've
got the same coal vendor, we just made him an up-front
payment to get him a reduced ccal price.

Q I would like to refer you to Issue 58, Mr.
McMillan, dealing with bank fees and line of credit
charges. 1Is it correct that Gulf foruwerly msintained
compensating balances of 10% for lines of credit?

A Yes. We do -- we did, and we still do; 1
mean, for certain banks.

Q In 1988, did Gulf change its practice with
regard to compensating balances?

A Yes. There was a change. With our large
banks, we did, we were able to negotiate, actually
paying them a fee versus leaving a 10% compensating
balance at their bank as a form of compensation for
lines of credit. As 1 stated earlier, we still do have
some lines of credit with some smaller banks.

Q Why is Gulf still maintaining some lines of
credit requiring compensating balances?

A Well, some banks aren’t too -- you know, the
smaller banks really, some cof them didn‘t want to go to
the one-eighth. Tt is a cheaper form to getting these
fees, and we do need to have certain of these banks f{or
our daily disbursements and that sort of thing, to be

run through. And a compensating balance serves as a

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

778

form of compensation to the bank. But I think we did
file an interrogatory, 1 think a Staff cor Public
Counsel interrogatory, that lists the bankz that we
still have compensating balances with.

Q I believe Gulf is projecting to either pay
fees or mainta’'. compensating balances for
approximately $48 million in lines of credit for 1990,
is that correct?

A For 19887

Q No, for 1990. 1 believe the figure is 48
million, projected?

A Yes. The combination of the banks that we
are currently budgeted to use fees, and including the
ones that we’ve got compensating balances, the sum of
those *wo are 48 million.

Q And in 1989, the Company maintained 49
million in lines of credit, is that correct?

A Hold con. It’s about the samc¢ amount, so 1
would agree with that, subject to check.

Q Would you also agree that for 1988, Gulf
maintained 50 million in lines of credit?

A I don‘t have that with me, but I will agree
with that, subject tou check.

Q Thank you. If Gulf were to access lines of

credit, where would that liability show up on the
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balance sheet?

A You mean a compensating balance? If we
maintained compensating balances as lines of credit?

Q No, if the Company were to access a line of
credit?

A The liability would be in our notes payable
line on te balance sheet.

Q I would like to you turn, if you would,
please, to your prefiled testimony, Schedule 2. I
believe that’s been identified as Exhibit 50. (Pause)

Co you have that?

A I have that, yes.

Q Did Gulf access any of its lines of credit in
19897

A Yes. We did.

Q Where would that appear on that schedule,

Schedule 2, Page 3 of 10?7 It’s in Exhibit 50.

A Well, on Page 3 of 10 of that exhibit, 1
would include the 1989 actual amounts through August.
And, so, there were two months at month-end that we
actually had an outstanding notes payable, so they
would be reflected in the months of May and June.
(Pause)

We also, it appears, based on another

document I have that shows daily borrowings, we
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actually had some borrowings in the month of February
of $1 million, and also borrowed scme money in bot!
July and August, in addition to these two months.

Q Would that show up in any of the schedules
attached to your prefiled testimony, or in any of the

interrogatory responses you have given?

A It probably would 110t because everything that

you’ve normally filed is on a calendar month basis. So

you could have some borrowings at the beginning of the
month that are repaid during the same month, and they
net out to zero as far as any monthly balances. 1
could provide you a listing of the actual short-term

borrowings during 1989.

Q Could you please do that?

A Yes.

Q Could you do that for both 1990 and 198%?

A 1990, I could give you like through June or

May or June actual.
MS. RULE: Thank you. 1 believe that would
be Late-Filed 5737

MR. PRUITT: 574.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: I don’t have a 573. I have

572.
MS. RULE: We'’ve got 572.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: 573 the next number?
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MR. PRUITT: Mr. Chairman, 571 was assigned
to a reguest tl.at Staff made for some projections, and
I couldn’t pick up the balance of the title.

MS. RULE: 1If you will give me one minute,
1’11 look at my guescions and see. I may have numbered
it on my questions.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: Okay, let’s go ahead and
check that. (Pause)

MS. RULE: Commissioner, the last one I have
indicated in my notes was the, "Effects of Proposed
Rate Base Adjustments."

CHAIRMAN WILSON: That’s the last one I have,
and that’s numbered 572.

MS. RULE: That’s what I have.

CHAIRMAN WILSON: All right, so the next ocne
will be 573. And if there’s one in between, if it
shows up, we’ll give it another number.

M5. RULE: And I believe that would be
"Short-Term Borrowings, 198S% and 1990."

WITNESS McMILLAN: Yeah, that would be fine.

(Late-flled Exhibit No. 573 identified.)

Q (By Ms. Rule) Did Gulf access any of i*s
lines of credit, or has Gulf so far accessed any of its
lines of credit for 19907

A Yes. We have.
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Q Would that show up on Exhibit 50, Schedule 2,
Page 8 of 107

A Those would be ocur forecasted amounts, yes.
Which would be on a calecndar month basis, again. But
as you can see, w2 were showing borrowing for five
months there.

Q What is the maximum amount Gulf has had to
borrow on its lines of credit for 1989 and thus far in
19307

A I'm sorry?’

Q What is the maxiwmum amount Gulf has had to
borrow on its lines of credit in 1989 and 19907

A I don’t have that figuvre calculated right in
front of me, but it’s approximately $30 million that we
have outstanding, as of today, I believe.

Q Could you add that information to late-filed

Exhibit 5737

A Yes.

Q Maximum amount borrowed in 89 and 90?

A Yes.

Q How does Gulf determine the total amount of

lines of credit it should maintain?
A Basically, we look at our -- several factors.
One of the factors being our forecasted cash position

based on the budget. And just using this financial
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model, primarily, as a tool, we look at the maximum
amount that we’re showing as a short-term requiremen’..

And historically, we’ve added approximately
$25 million. It just depends upon our construction
program at the t‘me and outside influences that we feel
may have some impact on our potential -- could have a
negative impact if we didn’t have enough cash. But,
you know, it’s been running -- we’ve been trying to
maintain lines somewhere in the neighborhood cf 40 to
$50 million, recognizing our cash volatility.

If you just look at our revenue flow, our
source of revenues which are primarily from sales of
electricity, between summer and winter they tend to
fluctuate to the extent of 25 to $50 million, and we
have to be prepared, or have the cash available, to
absorb that type of cyclability in our revenues.

Q Can you provide me with the assumptions
underlying those models?

A Well, the model, itself, includes our whole
forecast. I mean, basically, it includes everything in
our budget, all our operating expenses, construction
program, interest rate assumptions. 1 mean, the
financial model, as 1 addressed in my prefiled
testimony, is our primary forecasting tool. It looks

at all components of our forecast, our balance sheet
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and income statement. And it attempts to quantify the
actual cash requirements.

We use it primarily to judge our external
financing requirements. Because we recognize in this
particular model, since it’s strictly done on a
calendar month basis, there does leave some leeway in
there. And that’s why I said, we usually add about a
25 to $40 million cushion. You could actually have
that big a swings in our cash within a calendar month.
And this thing -- we’'re only budgeting, on a forecaset,
on a calendar month basis, which would not represent

the large cyclability within the month itself.

Q Have you actually had a 25 to $40 million
swing?

A Yes. As far as our disbursement
requirements?

Q Yes.

A In our actual financing? You could easily

that kind of change from one month to the next. If it
hits in the month where we have dividend payments, and
some type of other external requirement that's a big
ticket item, you could easily see that.

If you go back when they uced to -- 1’11 give
you a good example of that. It was back when everybody

used to actually receive that Scuth Af:rican ccal, when
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that ship came in it was roughly a $10 million payment
whenever they unloaded that boat in Mobile. And you
had to be prepared to cut that check. It may not come
back for several months, but you needed the money
whenever that boat was unloaded.

Q But isn’t that sort of a planned event, as
are dividends?

A It is somewhat planned, but it‘s -- that type
of coal delivery was not -- you knew far enough in
advance to make sure you had money available, but you
had to have the lines. We can’t wait the month we know
something is coming and start scrambling around looking
for lines of credit. That would not be a prudent thing
to do. It may not be there when you need it. Somewhat
like any other planning requirement, we are looking --
we are trying to minimize our costs, yet ensure that
we’ve got adequate resources to do our -- to perform
the daily requirements and the cash disbursements
needed to provide utility service.

Q Mr. McMillan, in 1989, Gulf’s actual expense
for line of credit fees was roughly $%54,000 versus
$60,000 budgeted, is that correct?

COMMISSIONER EASLFY: Thousand or million?
M5. RULE: Thousand. This is expense for

line of credit fees.
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COMMISSIONER EASLEY: O©Oh, sorry.

A What were you looking at, 19897

Q Yes, sir.

A What figure was that you used? I'm sorry.

Q I believe actual was $54,0%5]3, budgeted
60,000.

A I'l11 agree with tliat subject to check. 1

don‘t have that number in front of me.

Q Thank you. And through April 30th of 19%0, I
believe Gulf budgeted $20,000 for line of credit fees,
is that correct?

A Yes.

Q But I believe for that period of time Gulf's
actual expense for line of credit fees was $14,687.

Can you confirm that?

A That’s correct.

Q Can you explain the variance between budgeted
and actual?

A I don’t have that with me. 1 could get a --
there were some -- there were actually -- I think we
showed it on an interrogatcry, there was actually a
contingency budgeted for the test period of seven --
what is it, §7,500 at 60,000, and that was with the
anticipation that we would have to seek additiocnal

lines of credit. Based on our budget, we have not done
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that, obviously, through the first quarter because the
20,000 was basically one-third of the 60,000 trat was
budgeted. So I would assume the reason for the
variance is the fact that we have not yet gone out and
attained additional lines of credit.

Q Is there any reason why the Commis:ion
shouldn’t just inciude actual experse rather than your
budgeted expense here?

A Well, unless 1 can present evidence that we
need that additional monev, in this particular
instance, I would say that probably wouldn’t be
unreasonable, but I need to -- I could probably, before
1 come back up for rebuttal, find out to make sure that
that is the reason for the underage and that they have
not already signed -- see, those contracts are signed
on a calendar-year basis, usually starting April 1st,
and so you may not have -- they may have actually
signed some additional contracts that [I'm not aware of.

Q Could you explain how actual line of credit

fees are determined?

A The line of credit fees?
Q Yes, sir.
A They’re basically one-eighth of 1% of the

line of credit that we’ve attained.

Q Did you say cte-eighth of 1%7
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A I believe so.

Q I believe Gulf also incurs other bank fees,
Tan you explain what they are?

A Ma’am?

Q Gulf als. incurred some other bank charges
and pays other bank fees. Could you tell me what they
are?

A Yes. That’s our bank service charges, which
are just like you or I would have for running a
checking account, be similar in nature. Effective in
1988 we basically changed our whole thinking as far as
cur disbursement methodology and consolidated all our
disbursements out of one bank in Pensacola. Previous
to that we had basic -- we had included demand costs or
checking accounts at several banks which served as a --
to offset a lot of the bank service fees. You
basically have a compensation balance for doing your
disbursements.

In B8 we cunanged that. We’ve now got ocne
disbursement account and we don’t include or leave any
cash in that account until the checks are actually
presented for payment. They call the Treasury
Department, tell them they’ve got $2 million; they need
$2 million to clear some checks, and what it has done

is enabled us to invest that cash up until the time
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it’s needed.

And what has happened is -- and you can
clearly see in our file data, we don‘t -- we are not
asking for any cash, per se. 1 mean we -- it's
actually a negative cash balance in the ‘90 test
period.

If you go back to our last case, we actually
had approved in excess of $5 million in cash, which
were to compensate us for the compensating balances on
lines of credit and the compensating balances related
to our disbursement accounts, and that is really where
the customer savings are recognized, is through a
reduction in working capital since the Company has
actually removed the temporary cash investmen*s from
working capital.

Q I believe Gulf currently records your other
bank fee expense in Account 921, Office Supplies and
Expenses, is that correct?

A That'’s correct.

Q And FERC has taken the position that the
expense should be recorded in the account "Other

Interest Expense." 1Is that also correct?

A That’s correct.
Q Has that been resolved with FERC at this
point?
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A It has not. As far as I know, that'’'s one
issue that they’re still reviewing, and we feel ljike it
has been properly classified in O4LM expenses as not an
interest amount.
COMMISSIONER BEARD: I got to stop and back
up a question.
You said that the temporary cash investments
have been removed from working capital.
WITNESS McMILLAN: Yes, they have, in total.
COMMISSIONER BEARD: Your position on Issue
21 doesn’t say that. "The Company believes it would be
appropriate to include temporary cash investmenis in
jurisdictional working capital." And the amount you
referred to as $6.045 million.
WITNESS McMILLAN: Yes. If you read my tirst
-- the very first sentence, 1 said, "Gulf’s filing
reflects that temporary cash investments have been
removed from jurisdictional adjusted working capital
consistent with the treatment in our last case." I
just followed up the Commission’s -- Witness Seery has
actually put in the record that he agrees with what the
Company has felt all aloung, that as long as the Company
can just.fy those temporary cash investments as being
reasonable and required for utility service, that they

should be included in working capital and allowed the
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overall return and the earnings off of those should be
included in NOI, and we would definitely agree with
that statement.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: But in the interim, you
have removed them from working capital?

WITNESS McMILLAN: That’s correct. 1In the
filing they‘ve been removed.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: I am just trying to get
apples to apples, because OPC is saying remove them,
reduce working capital, and I don’t want to double
count.

WITNESS McMILLAN: Yes, they have been --
see, if you look at that jurisdictional balance sheet,
that B-2-A, that’s an unadjusted balance sheet, and
some people get confused there. On that particular
thing there is a jurisdictional amount of temporary

cash showed over in the right column, but that is an

lunadjusted balance sheet. If you go to B-14, the

working capital exhibit, it will clearly show the
removal of all of the temporary cash investments, in my
Schedule 7, in my working capital component of my rate
base.

MS. RULE: Actually, Commissioner, 1 would
like to follow up on what you brought up.

Q (By Ms. Rule) You testified, Mr. McMillan,
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that Mr. Seery essentially put in scme testimony, with
which Gulf agreed, about including temporary cach
investments in rate case, correct?

A Yes, I do.
Q But his testimony indicates that the
treatment of either cash balances or temporary cash

investments should depend on their prudency, is that

correct?
A I would have no problem with that.
Q And he also testifies that if Gulf can

demonstrate through competent evidence that the
temporary cash investments are necessary for the
provision of utility service, then they should remain
in rate base and earn at the Utility’s overall rate ot

return. Is that a correct explanation of his

testimony?
A That’s a very straightforward synopsis, yes.
Q What competent evidence has Gulf provided

that demonstrates that the temporary cash investments
are necessary for providing utility service?

A Well, in my rebuttal testimony, I guess -- 1
made some -- I'm very unclear what he considers to be
-- what he needs. Obviously as I've stated in my
rebuttal, the $6.3 million is essentially all of our

cash and represents less than 10% of cne month’s
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disbursements for Gulf Power Company, and in no way
could be considered an excessive amount. And beyona
that, I‘'m at a loss to what exactly he wants us to
provide. We would be glad to provide whatever would be
requested through discovery, but, you know, we don’t
know of any other way to pay our hills other than to
have cash avaiable. Either you’‘re going to have
temporary cash, cash, or short-term debt, »ne of the
three, because if you -- o2nce you stop paying your
bills, you’re going into bankruptcy at that stage, and
you’ll be shut down. You‘ve got to have liguid assets,
in effect, is what I‘'m saying.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Let me ask a procedural
guection, because I went through looking for tae
witnesses on 21. Seery wasn’t listed. That's why I
didn’t look specifically back there.

MS. RULE: He’s not testifying on that. It’'s
a discussion in his testimony, but he’s not
specifically testifying on that. He’s cost ol capital.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: You're saying € million
is your total cash on hand, on average on a given
month?

WITNESS McMILLAN: ©On the 13-month average
basis.

COMMISSIOKER BEARD: On the 13-month average
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basis. What are your revenues, just roughly, coming in
each -- monthly revenues?

WITNESS McMILLAN: On an annual basis roughly
450-, $500 million. 1'd say on average you’'re looking
at roughly $50 million, just to be a good, round
figure.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: I had it closer to 40,
but that’s okay. You’ve got $40 million worth of
revenue coring in every month. Your remaining cash on
hand invested in short-tecrm investments is the roughly
6 m:1lion?

WITNESS McMILLAN: That’s correct.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: That‘s not the $6
million that you have to spend to pay your bills?

WITNESS McMILLAN: That'’s what, on average,
was .eft over above -- over a l3-month period.
Obvicusly, five months of the year we were actually in
the : nhort-term debt. Some months we had more than $6
million in temporary cash.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: I understand. I looked
at these schedules. I just was hearing you say one
thing and I misunderstood.

WITNESS McMILLAN: I mean it’s not unusual to
see 20-, 30-, $40 million swings in our cash position

within a year because of the cyclicability of our

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

1B

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

795

revenues and our expenses.

COMMISSIONER BEARD: Typically, something
your cash management people would plan for in advance?
WITNESS McMILLAN: That'’s correct.

Q (By Ms., Rule) Mr. McMillan, you provided
Interrogatory Response No. 188 in Staff’s Eleventh Set
of Interrogatories, I believe, and that should be
before you as Exhibit 439 in your packet. Could you
take a look at that?

A Yes, I have that in front of me.

Q Is it your positiorn that this interrogatory
response provides competent evidence that temporary
cash investments are necessary for the provision of
utility service?

A That particular interrogatory, in effect,
describes our cash or our disbursement process, and
what I was -- what I guess I was emphasizing there is
that the 6.3 million is the totazl amount of our liquid
assets, 1 mean cash and temporary cash, and the fact
that it does -- the temporary cash is approximately 10%
of our monthly disbursement, do reflect to me that the
Company has a very small, conservative estimate of
temporary cash investments.

As 1 stated, I could probably go back to ‘B9

or prior years and it would be much higher than the
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level that’s in the ‘90 test period, and would be
justified.

Q Well, the interrogatories state -- ask you to
"pPlease provide a detailed explanation of what portion,
if any, of the Company’s 13-month balance of temporary
cash investments are necessary for the provision of
utility service and why?" And basically, the only
thing I can find in your response is in the second
paragraph, liast sentence, where it says, "The Company
again maintains these funds are required and necessary
in providing utilicy services for our customers." And
the rest seems to discuss the amount of it. 1Is that --

A Yeah, and in my very first sentence,
obviously I tried to answer very directly. 1 said,
"All of Gulf’s temporary cash investments were required
and necessary in the provision of electric service to
our customers.” And I go on to explain why 1 take that
position. Like I said, I'm not clear exactly how you
would -- what else would you recommend that I say, that
I'm missing, I guess, is the question.

Q For example, have you provided Staff with a
cash budget or any other schedule that would allow us
to assess a temporary level cof cash investment and make
a determination if the level is reasonable?

A I have not been requested of one. I de have
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the statement that approximately $6.4 millicn is
approximately 10% of our monthly disbursement, which
would imply our monthly disbursement woulc be around
$60 million.

Q So basically it appears that your responses
are all necessary and this is 10%, is that what it
boils down to?

A They are all necessary, absolutely. If you
would like a cash forecast, I could provide one as a
late-filed, but --

Q Well, the difficulty we have, Mr. McMillan,
is that it’s up to Gulf to prove its case and to
provide the evidence. And what you’‘re telling ne is we
haven’t asked you the exactly correct guestion, and
therefcre, you haven’t provided the evidence.

A What I'm saying is I'm not sure what you want
for evidence, and I thinxk the number is so conservative
-- conservatively small that it wouldn’t require
additional support.

Q Could you provide the cash budget we
discussed as a late-filed exhibit?

A Yes, I will

Q I believe that would be 574.

CHATIRMAN WILSON: 574.

M5. RULE: Let’s just call it "Cash Budget."
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(Late-Filed Exhibit No. 574 identified.)

Q How has Gulf determined the amount of
temporary cash investments necessary to have on hand?

A How do we determine how much temporary cash
we need on hand, is that the guestion?

Q How did Gul. determine the amount of
temporary cash investments that were necessary’ You
say it’s a conservative figure. How did you come up
with it?

A Basically, I guess 1 need to explain how the
budgeting process for cash works. In effect, we get
all of the approved budgets, the capital, O&M,
revenues, each of the approved budgets which were
discussed with Mr. Gilbert’s budgeting process. All ol
those budgets are then incorporated into a financial
forecast in the financial model. Essentially our cash
position, either temporary cash or short-term debt, 1is
a resulting final balancing feature on the balance
sheet. Of course, obviously, we have to put in
projections for the receivables and payables and other
liabilities of the Company, but essentially once you
get that, the finarcial model then enabies us to look
at our external financing requirements in respect to
our short-term cash positicn.

And the executive management, including the
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Vice President of Finance, and my area and the
Treasurer have discussions as far as the timing and the
amount of any external financings. And that would
actually be what would influence what our temporary
cash or short-term debt amount is.

If we came out with a forecast that for
whatever reason we were generating a lot of cash and
our temporary cash had increased to 100 miilion, and we
were looking down the road and didn’'t see a need for
that cash, obviously at tha: point in time Gulf would
take some -- we'd have to make some move to either
retire some senior securities or something of that
nature to extinguish the cash. That 1s not a guod
thing to do on a very short-term, narrow-defined point,
because, I’'m sure as you're aware, external financings
are very expensive and they’re very costly.

So the Company, a lot of times it’s horizons

two to three years. If you‘re showing $2C million in

Itemporary cash this year and you need that six months

later or the following year, it would not behonve you
te go out and retire some debt and then have to
refinance, do some more external financing the
succeeding year for that. It would behoove you t¢ hold
on Lo that cash until it‘s needea. And that's done on

a -- reall, on an annual basis, when the budget’s
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Idone, prluis on a monthly basis by our treasurer in
conjunct on with my department as far as what our cash
-- actual cash balances and requirements are.

Q Could you tell me why Gulf should maintain
temporary cash investments of approximately $6.4
million wnen the Cc .pany has access to over $48 million
in lines of credit?

A As I was just stating, the cash, the
temporary cash is -- if you look at our forecast, we've
only got seven months out of the year that we actually
ended the month with cash. We cannot, on a monthly
basis, because we’‘ve got 51 million in temporary cash,
get rid o' that. 1 mean, unless we can get our vendors
to bill us in advance, which would not be a good move.
The only uvther thing you can do is extinguish scnior
swcur ity amounts.

It’s because of our cash volatility or the
fluctuation due to seasonality of our revenues you're
always going to see some fluctuation. In this
particular case, in the test year, roughly half the
year we've got temporary cash; half the year, we’ve got

short-term debt, which tells me we'rae basically as

tight as we can get as far as our cash, without monthly
trying to extinguish senior securities, which that

would not be a real viable solution to a month where
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you end with some temporary cash.

Q Can you explain the difference for me between
letters of credit and lines of credit?

A The lines of credit are the actual balance
that we can borrow from that bank. Letters of credit,
I think, are just refe .ing to the contracts that we
may have with the specific financial institutions.
They’re all a line of credit.

Q Do you know the difference?

A I'm not sure. I don’t know that there wcild
be a difference there.

Q Pardon me?

A I'm not sure -- if you're referring to
something that’s different, no, I do not.

Q Do you know whether there’s a difference

between letters of credit and lines of credit?

A Yes, there is.

Q Do you know what the difference 1is?

A I'm not clear. I could get that after a
break.

Q Could you tell me, if you know, if Gulf

incurred expenses for letters of credit as opposed to
lines of credit and what account would the expense be
recorded?

A I don’t believe there is any expenses related
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to the letters of credit, just the lines of credit.
Q Do you know?
A I will verify that.
Q Thank you.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: This is an appropriate
time, when we’ve got some items that can be done over
the break, why don’t we break for lunch now. Come back
at 1:00.

MR. HOLLAND: Commissioner, before we bLreak,
you had requested Late-filed Exhibit No. 550 be handed
out today and I have that to distribute to the parties.

COMMISSIONER GUNTER: All right. Give it out
right after lunch.

(Thereupon, lunch recess was taken.)
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